
GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SPECIAL MEETING at 7:00 p.m. 
REGULAR MEETING at 7:30 p.m. 

Thursday, November 18, 2021 
DUE TO COVID-19 AND COUNTY REGULATIONS, THIS MEETING WILL BE 

HELD VIA TELECONFERENCE AS PERMITTED BY THE GOVERNOR’S 
EXECUTIVE ORDER N-08-21. 

Members of the Public may participate via ZOOM online or by telephone: 

Join Zoom Meeting 

Phone one-tap: US: +16699006833,,98324344346# or +19292056099,,98324344346#  
Meeting URL:  https://dudek.zoom.us/j/98324344346 

Join by Telephone 

Dial:  US: +1 669 900 6833 or +1 929 205 6099  

Meeting ID:  983 2434 4346 
 

 
CALL SPECIAL MEETING TO ORDER AT 7:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL 

Directors: President: Matthew Clark 
Vice-President: Eric Suchomel 
Director: Barbara Dye 
Director: Nancy Marsh 
Director: David Seaton 

Staff: General Manager: Chuck Duffy 
Assistant Manager: Delia Comito  

 
The Board has the right to take action on any of the items listed on the Agenda. The 
Board reserves the right to change the order of the agenda items, to postpone agenda 
items to a later date, or to table items indefinitely. 
 
 

https://dudek.zoom.us/j/98324344346
tel:+16699006833,,98324344346
tel:+19292056099,,98324344346
https://dudek.zoom.us/j/98324344346


GCSD Special and Regular Board of Directors Meetings 
November 18, 2021 

 

GENERAL PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Public members may comment on matters under the jurisdiction of the District that are 
not on the agenda. Comments are limited to 3 minutes. 
 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
1. Conference with Real Property Negotiator (Government Code Section 

54956.8). Property: Avenue Alhambra (no street address), El Granada, California, 
APN 047-251-070. 
District’s Negotiator: Chuck Duffy 
Negotiating parties: Laura Silvestri Trust and Granada Community Services District Under 
negotiation: Instruction to negotiator will concern price and terms of payment. 

 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
Report any reportable action taken in Closed Session. 

 
ADJOURN SPECIAL MEETING 

 
CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER AT 7:30 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
GENERAL PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Public members may comment on matters under the jurisdiction of the District that are 
not on the agenda. Comments are limited to 3 minutes. See the instructions above to 
comment via ZOOM (online) or by telephone. 

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
1. Report on the Status of the Quarry Park Bike Pump Track by Nicholas Calderon of 

San Mateo County Parks. 
       Recommendation: For Board Information 
 

2. Consideration of Variance for APN 048-013-790, Cortez Avenue, 7,446 Sq. Ft. Parcel 
in a 10,000 Sq. Ft. Zoning District, Owner: Carey. 
       Recommendation: To be made by the Board. 
 

3. Consideration of a Class 2M Sewer Connection Permit for APN 047-204-020, 516 
Avenue Alhambra, Owner: Clonea, LLC 
       Recommendation: To be made by the Board. 
 

4. Consideration of Ordinance to Adopt Mandatory Organic Waste Disposal 
Reduction Regulations (SB 1383). 
      Recommendation: Approve the Ordinance. 
 

5. Consideration of MOU with the County of San Mateo for Establishment of Edible 
Food Recovery Program. 
      Recommendation: Approve the MOU. 



GCSD Special and Regular Board of Directors Meetings 
November 18, 2021 

 

 
6. Report on Parks and Recreation Activities.  

a. Appointments to the Parks Advisory Committee. 
           Recommendation: To be made by the Board. 

 
7. Consideration of Resolution Establishing Fees for Processing Applications and 

Other Administrative Processes. 
      Recommendation: To Approve the Resolution. 
 

8. Consideration of Support for the Potential Adoption of San Mateo County 
Supervisorial District Boundaries Following the 2020 Census.  
      Recommendation: To be made by the Board. 
 

9. Discussion of SAM Treatment Plant Process Issues and Non-Domestic Source 
Control Program.  
      Recommendation: To be made by the Board. 
 

10. Report on Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside Meetings. 
       Recommendation: For Board Information. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
11. October 21, 2021 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes. 
12. November 2021 Warrants. 
13. Approve Change Order Payment to Devaney Engineering for $61,682.05. 
14. September 2021 Financial Statements. 
15. Assessment District Distribution #4-21/22. 
16. Approve Notice of Completion for the Medio Creek Bridge Crossing Sewer 

Relocation Project, Phase 2. 
17. Approve Notice of Completion for the 2020 Sewer Replacement Project. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
18. Report on seminars, conferences, or committee meetings. 
 
INFORMATION CALENDAR 
19. Attorney’s Report. (Parkin) 
20. General Manager’s Report. (Duffy) 
21. Administrative Staff Report. (Comito) 
22. Engineer’s Report. (Kennedy Jenks) 
23. Future Agenda Items. 

 
ADJOURN REGULAR MEETING 
At the conclusion of the September 16, 2021 Meeting: 
Last Ordinance adopted: No. 174 
Last Resolution adopted: No. 2021-005 

 
This meeting is accessible to people with disabilities. If you have a disability and require special assistance 
related to participating in this teleconference meeting, please contact the District at least two working days 
in advance of the meeting at (650) 726-7093 or via email at dcomito@granada.ca.gov. 

mailto:dcomito@granada.ca.gov


GCSD Special and Regular Board of Directors Meetings 
November 18, 2021 

 

 
Except for records exempt from disclosure under section 6254 of the Public Records Act, all materials 
distributed for the discussion or consideration of items on the Agenda are disclosable to the public upon 
request, and shall be made available without delay or at the time of distribution to the Board. Please contact 
Delia Comito at (650) 726-7093 to request copies of Agenda materials. 



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

AAGGEENNDDAA  NNOOTTIICCEE  
 
 

 
There are no documents for Closed Session. 

 
 
 
 
 
 





- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM #1 



 

 

 

 

 



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

              AGENDA MEMORANDUM   

 
To: Board of Directors 

From: Delia Comito, Assistant General Manager 

Subject:   Report on the Status of Quarry Park Pump Track 
 

Date: November 18, 2021 

 
San Mateo County Parks Director Nicholas Calderon will provide an update on the status 
of the bike pump track project in Quarry Park. 
 





- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM #2 



 

 

 

 

 



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

              AGENDA MEMORANDUM   

 
To: Board of Directors 

From: Delia Comito, Assistant General Manager 

Subject:   Consideration of Variance for APN 048-018-790 (Carey) 
 

Date: November 18, 2021 

 
A Sewer Permit Variance application was submitted on May 5, 2021 by Tom Carey for 
the new construction of a 2,601 sq. ft. single-family dwelling, and a 367 sq. ft. ADU on a 
7,446 sq. ft. parcel in the R-1/S-94 zoning district (10,000 sq. ft. minimum), located on 
Cortez Avenue in Miramar.  This application is subject to semi-annual approval as the 
Board may not grant more than one such variance within a six-month period.  The last 
such variance was granted on March 18, 2021. 
 
District Counsel has reviewed the evidence submitted by the applicant and has prepared 
the Findings Report attached.  The District Board must determine whether the evidence is 
sufficient to satisfy each required finding as it relates to sewer service before granting a 
Variance.   
 
The following documents are attached for this Item:   
 
Variance Findings (prepared by Counsel) 
Completed Variance Application Form 
Grant Deed, Legal Description and Map 
Owner’s Statement of Facts 
“No Acceptance of Fees” Form 
Project Plans 
Assessor’s Parcel Map 
Mainline Map 



 
FINDINGS REGARDING FREITAS VARIANCE APPLICATION 
Page 1 of 5  

FINDINGS FOR SEWER PERMIT VARIANCE 
Carey 

APN: 048-013-790 
Cortez Avenue, El Granada 

 
(1) REQUIRED FINDING:  Where the property is shown on a map first recorded prior to 

August 14, 1929 and has not been approved after March 4, 1972 by a recorded final 
subdivision map, it has been lawfully created for land use purposes by having been the 
subject of a legal conveyance into ownership separate from all contiguous parcels.  
Where a parcel is 4,750 square feet or greater in the S-17 or S3 Zoning Districts, or 8,800 
square feet or greater in the S-94 Zoning District, a chain of title shall not be required to 
establish a basis for this finding unless determined to be necessary by the District Board. 

 
 INFORMATION REQUIRED:  Chain of Title from a Title Insurance Company for all 

transactions claimed to constitute sale, lease or financing of the parcel which is the 
subject of the variance application and each vacant parcel sharing a boundary line with 
the subject parcel, from the date the Applicant contends the subject parcel was first 
legally created to the date of the application. 

 
FINDING:   
The current zoning for the parcel is R-1/S-94/DR/CD (One Family Residential 
District/Residential Density District 94 (Mid-Coast)/Design Review District/Coastal 
Development District) and the parcel is 7,446 square feet. There is one vacant parcel and 
two developed parcels sharing a boundary line with the subject parcel.  The vacant parcel 
(APN 048-013-900) is managed by Thomas E. Bishop, Trustee et al. and was formerly 
the right of way for the Ocean Shore Railway Company.  The developed parcels contain 
lot number 16 (APN 048-013-200); and lots numbered 12 and 13 (APN 048-013-830).  
 
Lots 14 and 15, block 7, are designated on the Map entitled “Shore Acres, Half Moon 
Bay, California, first Addition to the City of Balboa,” filed in the Office of the County 
Recorder of San Mateo County, State of California on December 18, 1905 in Book “B” 
of original maps at page 12 and copied into Book 3 of Maps at page 95. This parcel was 
first conveyed separately from any adjacent parcels on January 25, 1906. It should be 
noted that the Title Report states the parcel was first conveyed separately from any 
adjacent parcels on January 25, 1909. However, such an inconsistency is inconsequential, 
as the conveyance of this parcel precedes the County’s initially adopted Subdivision 
Ordinance No. 595, effective on July 20, 1945. Therefore, the parcel was legally created 
and this finding can be made in the affirmative.    

 
(2) REQUIRED FINDING: Where the property is not shown on any recorded map but is 

shown on a deed into separate ownership recorded prior to July 20, 1945, it has been 
lawfully created for land use purposes by having been the subject of a legal conveyance 
into ownership separate from all contiguous parcels.  Where a parcel is 4,750 square feet 
or greater in the S-17 or S-3 Zoning Districts, or 8,800 square feet or greater in the S-94 
Zoning District, a chain of title shall not be required to establish a basis for this finding 
unless determined to be necessary by the District Board. 



 
FINDINGS REGARDING FREITAS VARIANCE APPLICATION 
Page 2 of 5  

 
 INFORMATION REQUIRED:  Same as for (1), above.  
 
 FINDING:  Same as for (1), above.  The parcel was deeded into separate ownership 

from adjacent parcels prior to 1945.  Therefore, this finding can be made in the 
affirmative.  

 
(3) REQUIRED FINDING: Where the property is in the Coastal Zone, it has not been 

conveyed into ownership separate from all contiguous parcels for the first time after the 
February 1, 1973 effective date of vested rights under the California Coastal Act without 
a Coastal Development Permit approving a land division for the creation of such parcel. 

 
 INFORMATION REQUIRED: Same as for (1) above.   
 
 FINDING:  Same as for (1) above.  The subject parcel was conveyed into separate 

ownership from all contiguous parcels prior to February 1, 1973.  Therefore, this parcel 
was legally created under the Coastal Act.   

 
(4) REQUIRED FINDING: Unless a parcel is 4,750 square feet or greater in the S-17 or S-3 

Zoning Districts, or 8,800 square feet or greater in the S-94 Zoning District, a Certificate 
of Compliance or Conditional Certificate of Compliance6ty has been issued for the 
property, and if the property is in the Coastal Zone, a Coastal Development Permit 
process was conducted for the issuance of such Certificate, if required by law or 
regulation. 

 
 INFORMATION REQUIRED:  A Certificate of Compliance (conditional or 

unconditional) and a Coastal Development Permit if the subject parcel is in the Coastal 
Zone (or equivalent proof of parcel legality satisfactory to the District Board of 
Directors). 

   
FINDING:  The subject parcel is 7,446 square feet in the S-94 Zoning District.  A 
Certificate of Compliance was not issued by the County. However, the County asserts 
that a Certificate of Compliance is unnecessary because the parcel is the result of a 
merger in 1983 pursuant to the County’s merger program and therefore the parcel is 
considered legal.  A Coastal Development Permit is not required for this parcel because 
the subject parcel was conveyed into separate ownership from all contiguous parcels prior 
to February 1, 1973. The District Board can, and hereby does make this Required Finding 
(4). 

 
(5) REQUIRED FINDING: There are no features of the property or the development 

proposed thereon which have the potential to have a greater than usual contribution to 
wet weather sewage overflow. 

 
 INFORMATION REQUIRED:  Site Plan, Topographic Map and Building Permit plans 

for the subject parcel including calculations by the drafter of the plans showing the 
percentage of the subject parcel covered with impervious surfaces. 



 
FINDINGS REGARDING FREITAS VARIANCE APPLICATION 
Page 3 of 5  

 
FINDING:  Pursuant to County of San Mateo Zoning Regulations for Site Coverage, the 
maximum parcel coverage is 30% for structures in the S-94 district, plus an additional 
10% of site coverage for impervious surface area less than 18” above ground level (“non-
structures”).  (County Zoning Regs §§ 6300.9.11.50 and 6300.9.11.70).  The proposed 
parcel coverage for the structure is 2,233 square feet (30%) and the development 
proposed complies with the site coverage for structures.  The maximum site coverage for 
impervious non-structures is 10% which equals 744.6 square feet in this case.  The 
proposed coverage of impervious surfaces is 596 square feet (8%). Therefore, this finding 
can be made.    

 
(6) REQUIRED FINDING: Provision of sewer service to the parcel which is the subject of 

the application would not significantly adversely affect the ability of the District to serve 
a conforming parcel in view of the applicable buildout limits in the County of San Mateo 
Local Coastal Program.  Where the size of the subject parcel is less than 60% of 
minimum parcel size, the District can only make the finding that provision of sewer 
service would not significantly adversely affect the ability of the District to serve a 
conforming parcel in view of the applicable buildout limits in the County of San Mateo 
Local Coastal Program by placing a condition upon a recorded Sewer Permit that limits 
the number of bedrooms that the Sewer Permit will serve to two bedrooms. 

 
INFORMATION REQUIRED: The District already has or can obtain this information in 
the form of documentation showing the number of parcels in the District which have 
merged or which had their development rights transferred or otherwise eliminated since 
the completion of the Parcel Inventory and Development Potential Assessment for the 
Granada Sanitary District (prepared by J. Laurence Mintier & Associates in association 
with Kennedy/Jenks Consultants (District Engineer)).  The District will apply the 
information to the application before it.  
 
FINDING:  The minimum parcel size in the S-94 parcel is 10,000 square feet. The 
subject parcel is 7,446 square feet in size, which is 74% of the minimum parcel size.   
The District Board finds that provision of sewer service to the subject parcel would not 
significantly adversely affect the ability of the District to serve a conforming parcel in 
view of the applicable buildout limits in the County of San Mateo Local Coastal Program 
because the proposed residence is over 60% of the minimum parcel size. 
 

(7) REQUIRED FINDING: Granting of the variance would not constitute a special 
privilege not available to other property owners similarly situated. 

 
 INFORMATION REQUIRED:  Written statement of relevant facts from Applicant 

comparing contiguous or nearby properties. 
 

FINDING:   This is a Finding requiring the District Board’s factual determination. The 
parcel is 7,446 square feet (short of the 10,000 square foot minimum zoning requirement 
used for buildout calculations by 2,554 square feet, i.e. 74% of the minimum parcel size.) 
This could be considered a special privilege. However, both developed parcels to the 



 
FINDINGS REGARDING FREITAS VARIANCE APPLICATION 
Page 4 of 5  

north (APN 048-013-200) and west (APN 048-013-830) of the subject parcel are also less 
than the 10,000 square foot zoning requirement.  
 
The District Board finds that provision of sewer service to the parcel which is the subject 
of this application will not constitute a special privilege not available to other property 
owners similarly situated.  

 
(8) REQUIRED FINDING: The property owner has demonstrated by a preponderance of 

the evidence presented to the District Board that the parcel cannot be rendered 
conforming (without rendering any contiguous parcel nonconforming) by acquisition of 
one or more contiguous parcels by payment of fair market value for such contiguous 
parcel(s). 

 
 INFORMATION REQUIRED:  Parcel size and setback for each contiguous parcel 

sharing a boundary line with the subject parcel and name and address of owner(s) of each 
such contiguous parcel together with documentation showing that each such owner has 
been offered fair market value for a portion of such contiguous property such that the 
subject parcel would be rendered conforming.  The fair market value offer is not required 
if contiguous property is not vacant or, if developed, does not exceed minimum parcel 
size under the zoning ordinance. 

 
FINDING:   Applicant has provided information demonstrating why the parcels cannot 
be rendered conforming by acquisition of one or more contiguous parcels. A written offer 
to purchase a 2,700 square foot portion of the adjacent vacant parcel (APN 048-013-900), 
for the purpose of increasing the size of the subject parcel to the 10,000 square foot 
conforming zoning size, was made to the Owner of that parcel at the market rate. The 
Owner rejected that offer in writing. There are no other adjacent vacant parcels. The 
Applicant has submitted no evidence to suggest that the Applicant has offered to 
purchase a portion of the adjacent developed parcels (APN 048-013-200 and 048-013-
830). However, APN 028-013-200 is smaller in size than the subject parcel by 1,507 
square feet, less than the required zoning size, is already developed, and therefore not 
eligible for reduction in size via sale of portion to Subject Lot. APN 048-013-830 is 
larger than the size of the subject parcel by 1,353 square feet, less than the required 
zoning size, is already developed but less than the 10,000 square foot zoning requirement, 
and therefore not eligible for reduction in size via sale of portion to subject lot. It is a 
factual determination for the District Board to make whether these reasons are sufficient 
to establish that the parcel cannot be rendered conforming.  
 
The District Board finds that the property owner has demonstrated by a preponderance of 
the evidence that the parcel cannot be rendered conforming through purchase of adjacent 
vacant parcels.  

 
(9) REQUIRED FINDING: The component lots comprising the property do not qualify for 

merger or will be merged or rendered undevelopable as a condition of the issuance of the 
variance. 

 



 
FINDINGS REGARDING FREITAS VARIANCE APPLICATION 
Page 5 of 5  

 INFORMATION REQUIRED:  The District already has the needed information in the 
form of documentation showing the standards for merger in effect in the County of San 
Mateo at the time the variance application is considered by the District Board.   

 
FINDING:  No merger is possible based on the evidence submitted by the Applicant.  
This finding can be made in the affirmative.  The parcel was previously merged pursuant 
to the County’s merger program.    
  

(10) REQUIRED FINDING: The current property owner will not voluntarily accept a refund 
of fees, charges and/or assessments paid in exchange for agreement that the parcel will 
not ever be used to generate wastewater or garbage and there is no adopted District policy 
to unilaterally implement such a refund. 

 
INFORMATION REQUIRED:  Written statement from the Applicant of intent to 
develop.  There is currently no District policy for unilateral implementation of such a 
refund. 
 
FINDING:  The Applicant provided a written statement dated December 1, 2020.  This 
finding can be made in the affirmative.  

 
(11) REQUIRED FINDING:  For parcels which are less than 4,750 square feet in the S-17 or 

S-3 Zoning Districts, and for parcels which are less than 8,800 square feet in size in the 
S-94 Zoning District, the variance application was considered at a semi-annual meeting 
of the District Board held to consider and grant a total of no more than one semi-annual 
variance from among such variance applications submitted during the preceding six 
months based on the comparative merits of such application. 

 
 INFORMATION REQUIRED:  Confirmation to be provided by District Administrator. 
 

FINDING:  This parcel is 7,446 square feet in the S-94 Zoning District, which requires a 
parcel size measuring 10,000 square feet.  This Variance Application qualifies for semi-
annual consideration because it is less than 8,800 square feet.  There have been no other 
variance applications submitted in the past six months other than this one. Therefore, the 
issuance of this Variance will not result in the issuance of more than one semi-annual 
variance.  





















Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO,
USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance
Survey, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), (c) OpenStreetMap
contributors, and the GIS User Community

11/12/2021

1:1,502
1 in = 125 ft

± 048-013-790 
Cortez Ave, HMB



- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM #3 



 

 

 

 

 



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

              AGENDA MEMORANDUM   

 
To: Board of Directors 

From: Delia Comito, Assistant General Manager 

Subject:   Consideration of a Class 2M Sewer Permit for APN 047-204-020 
 

Date: November 18, 2021 

 
This Item is presented for the approval of a Class 2M Sewer Connection Permit for APN 
047-204-020, a 7,750 sq. ft. lot, in the C-1/S-3/DR zoning district.  The proposed project 
is a new 11,520 sq. ft., three-story, mixed-use building, comprised of a parking area and 
lobby on the first floor, offices and office facilities on the second floor, and four living 
units on the third floor (two 2-bedroom, 2-bath, and two 1-bedroom, 1-bath).  The project 
requires five (5) ERU’s of sewer capacity, which based on District policy, cannot be 
administratively issued and requires Board approval. 
 
On 3/14/19, the County Planning Commission approved a Use Permit, a Coastal 
Development Permit (CDP) and a Certificate of Compliance (CoC) for the parcel and 
project.  The approval letter and other documents provided for your consideration of this 
Item are attached and listed below:  
 

 Completed Sewer Connection Permit Application Form  
 Grant Deed 
 Planning Approval Letter with Findings and Conditions of Approval 
 Project Plans 
 Assessor’s Parcel Map 
 Mainline Map 

 
The plumbing plan provided for the project includes the location and construction 
specifications for the proposed sewer lateral and connection to District facilities, which 
meets all District standards.  Staff recommends Board approval for the issuance of a 
Class 2M Sewer Permit for this project.  If approved, a permit will be issued upon receipt 
of the County Building Department “Permit is Ready” notice and with payment of the 
permit fees totaling $65,356.80. 



















































Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO,
USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance
Survey, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), (c) OpenStreetMap
contributors, and the GIS User Community

10/21/2021

1:2,755
1 in = 230 ft

± 047-204-020
516 AVE ALHAMBRA



- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM #4 



 

 

 

 

 



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

              AGENDA MEMORANDUM   

 
To: Board of Directors 

From: Delia Comito, Assistant General Manager 

Subject:   Consideration of Ordinance to Adopt Mandatory Organic Waste Disposal  
                Reduction Regulations 
 

Date: November 18, 2021 

 
In a statewide effort to reduce climate pollutant emissions through regulation of organic 
waste, the District is required to implement SB 1383 by January 1, 2022.  This will 
require District customers to properly sort and recycle their organic waste, which 
includes yard waste, food scraps, and food & beverage-soiled paper products (e.g., pizza 
boxes, paper towels, paper cups).  

Recology of the Coast (ROTC) will begin weekly green waste and compostable material 
pickup in the residential areas on January 3, 2022.  All materials will be comingled in the 
current 96-gallon cart, and the second thirty-gallon cart will be discontinued.  By mail, 
their website, on NEXTDOOR and in the Half Moon Bay Review, ROTC has already 
begun education and outreach to all customers regarding the new program.   
 
The draft ordinance adopting SB 1383 is attached for your review.  Upon approval of the 
ordinance in November and December, and its publication, the SB 1383 language will be 
incorporated into District Code.  ROTC General Manager Chris Porter will be present at 
the meeting to answer any questions. 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ___ 
 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING MANDATORY ORGANIC WASTE DISPOSAL 
REDUCTION REGULATIONS  

 
 WHEREAS, the Granada Community Services District (“District”) is a Special District 
organized in 1958 under the Sanitary District Act of 1923 (Health & Safety Code §§ 6400 – 
6830); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Granada Community Services District Code (“Code”) includes 
regulations governing the collection, removal and disposal of garbage, rubbish, waste matter and 
refuse; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989, commonly  
referred to as Assembly Bill ("AB") 939, codified in substantial part at Public Resources  Code § 
40000 et seq., requires all jurisdictions within California to divert from landfill disposal a 
minimum of 50% of municipal solid waste generated annually within the jurisdiction through 
source reduction, recycling and composting programs; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Granada Community Services District (“District) is committed to AB 939 
compliance and works closely with its authorized waste collection contractor to divert waste from 
local landfills; and 

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 341 of 2011 places requirements on businesses and multi-
family property owners that generate a specified threshold amount of solid waste to arrange for 
recycling services and requires the City to implement a mandatory commercial recycling program.  

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 1826 of 2014 requires businesses and multi-family property 
owners that generate a specified threshold amount of solid waste, recycling, and organic waste per 
week to arrange for recycling services for that waste, requires the City to implement a recycling 
program to divert organic waste from businesses subject to the law, and requires the District to 
implement a mandatory commercial organics recycling program.  

WHEREAS, SB 1383, the Short-Lived Climate Pollutant Reduction Act of 2016, requires 
the California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) to develop 
regulations to reduce organics in landfills as a source of methane. As adopted by CalRecycle, these 
SB 1383 regulations (SB 1383 Regulations) place requirements on multiple entities including the 
City, residential households, commercial businesses and business owners, commercial edible food 
generators, haulers, self-haulers, food recovery organizations, and food recovery services to support 
achievement of statewide organic waste disposal reduction targets; and  

WHEREAS, the SB 1383 Regulations require the District to adopt and enforce an 
ordinance or other enforceable mechanism to implement relevant provisions of the SB 1383 
Regulations; and  



 
 

WHEREAS, the District’s authorized waste collection contractor readily provides 
commercial solid waste and organic waste collection and recycling services to  businesses; and   

  NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE GRANADA 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

 SECTION 1.  That the foregoing Recitals are true and correct and are incorporated  
herein by this reference as material findings in support of this Ordinance.   

SECTION 2. Section 304 of Article III of the District’s Code is hereby added: 

SECTION 304. Organic Waste Disposal Reduction. 

Section 304. (01)  Definitions  

(a) “Blue Container” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982.2(a)(5) and shall be 
used for the purpose of storage and collection of Source Separated Recyclable Materials or 
Source Separated Blue Container Organic Waste.   

 b) “CalRecycle” means California's Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery, 
which is the Department designated with responsibility for developing, implementing, and 
enforcing SB 1383 Regulations on Districts (and others).  

(c) “California Code of Regulations” or “CCR” means the State of California Code of 
Regulations. CCR references in this ordinance are preceded with a number that refers to 
the relevant Title of the CCR (e.g., “14 CCR” refers to Title 14 of CCR). 

(d) “Commercial Business” or “Commercial” means a firm, partnership, proprietorship, joint-
stock company, corporation, or association, whether for-profit or nonprofit, strip mall, 
industrial facility, or a multifamily residential dwelling, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR 
Section 18982(a)(6). A Multi-Family Residential Dwelling that consists of fewer than five 
(5) units is not a Commercial Business for purposes of implementing this ordinance.   

(e) “Commercial Edible Food Generator” includes a Tier One or a Tier Two Commercial 
Edible Food Generator as defined in this ordinance. For the purposes of this definition, 
Food Recovery Organizations and Food Recovery Services are not Commercial Edible 
Food Generators. 

(f) “Compliance Review” means a review of records by a District to determine compliance 
with this ordinance. 

(g) “Compost” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 17896.2(a)(4), which stated, as of 
the effective date of this ordinance, that “Compost” means the product resulting from the 
controlled biological decomposition of organic Solid Wastes that are Source Separated 
from the municipal Solid Waste stream, or which are separated at a centralized facility. 

(h) “Container Contamination” or “Contaminated Container” means a container, regardless of 
color, that contains Prohibited Container Contaminants, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR 
Section 18982(a)(55).  



 
 

(i) “Designee” means an entity that a District contracts with or otherwise arranges to carry out 
any of the District’s responsibilities of this ordinance as authorized in 14 CCR Section 
18981.2. A Designee may be a government entity, a hauler, a private entity, or a 
combination of those entities. 

(j) “Designee for Edible Food Recovery” means the County of San Mateo’s Office of 
Sustainability with which the District has a Memorandum of Understanding for the 
purposes of Edible Food Recovery including, but not limited to, inspection, investigation, 
and enforcement of the Edible Food Recovery provisions of this Ordinance. Contact 
information for the Designee for Edible Food Recovery can be found on the County of San 
Mateo Office of Sustainability website. 

(k) “Edible Food” means food intended for human consumption, or as otherwise defined in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(18). For the purposes of this ordinance or as otherwise defined in 
14 CCR Section 18982(a)(18), “Edible Food” is not Solid Waste if it is recovered and not 
discarded. Nothing in this ordinance or in 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 requires or 
authorizes the Recovery of Edible Food that does not meet the food safety requirements of 
the California Retail Food Code. 

(l) “Edible Food Recovery” means actions to collect, receive, and/or re-distribute Edible Food 
for human consumption from Tier One and Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators 
that otherwise would be disposed. 

(m) “Enforcement Action" means an action of the District to address non-compliance with this 
ordinance including, but not limited to, issuing administrative citations, fines, penalties, or 
using other remedies. 

(n) “Excluded Waste” means hazardous substance, hazardous waste, infectious waste, 
designated waste, volatile, corrosive, medical waste, infectious, regulated radioactive 
waste, and toxic substances or material that facility operator(s), which receive materials 
from the District and its generators, reasonably believe(s) would, as a result of or upon 
acceptance, transfer, processing, or disposal, be a violation of local, State, or Federal law, 
regulation, or ordinance, including: land use restrictions or conditions, waste that cannot 
be disposed of in Class III landfills or accepted at the facility by permit conditions, waste 
that in Districts, or its Designee’s reasonable opinion would present a significant risk to 
human health or the environment, cause a nuisance or otherwise create or expose District, 
or its Designee, to potential liability. Excluded Waste does not include used motor oil and 
filters, household batteries, universal wastes, and/or latex paint and other such materials 
when such materials are allowable materials for collection through the District’s collection 
programs and the generator or customer has properly placed the materials for collection 
pursuant to instructions provided by the District or its Designee for collection services.    

(o) “Food Distributor” means a company that distributes food to entities including, but not 
limited to, Supermarkets and Grocery Stores. 

(p) “Food Facility” has the same meaning as in Section 113789 of the Health and Safety Code. 



 
 

(q) “Food Recovery” means actions to collect and distribute food for human consumption that 
otherwise would be disposed, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(24). 

(r) “Food Recovery Organization” means an entity that engages in the collection or receipt of 
Edible Food from Tier One or Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators and 
distributes that Edible Food either directly or through other entities, including, but not 
limited to: 

(1) A food bank as defined in Section 113783 of the Health and Safety Code; 

(2) A nonprofit charitable organization as defined in Section 113841 of the Health and 
Safety code; and, 

(3) A nonprofit charitable temporary food facility as defined in Section 113842 of the 
Health and Safety Code. 

A Food Recovery Organization is not a Commercial Edible Food Generator for the 
purposes of this Ordinance and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 
pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(7).  

 (s) “Food Recovery Service” means a person or entity that collects and transports Edible Food 
from a Tier One or Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator to a Food Recovery 
Organization or other entities for Edible Food Recovery. A Food Recovery Service is not 
a Commercial Edible Food Generator for the purposes of this Ordinance and 
implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 pursuant to 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(7).  

(t) “Food Scraps” means all food such as, but not limited to, fruits, vegetables, meat, poultry, 
seafood, shellfish, bones, rice, beans, pasta, bread, cheese, and eggshells. Food Scraps 
excludes fats, oils, and grease when such materials are Source Separated from other Food 
Scraps.  

(u) “Food Service Provider” means an entity primarily engaged in providing food services to 
institutional, governmental, commercial, or industrial locations of others based on 
contractual arrangements with these types of organizations. 

(v) “Food-Soiled Paper” is compostable paper material that has come in contact with food or 
liquid, such as, but not limited to, compostable paper plates, paper coffee cups, napkins, 
pizza boxes, and milk cartons.  

(w) “Food Waste” means Food Scraps. 

(x) “Gray Container” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982.2(a)(28) and shall be 
used for the purpose of storage and collection of Gray Container Waste.    

(y) “Gray Container Waste” means Solid Waste that is collected in a Gray Container that is 
part of a three-container Organic Waste collection service that prohibits the placement of 



 
 

Organic Waste in the Gray Container as specified in 14 CCR Sections 18984.1(a) and (b), 
or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 17402(a)(6.5).   

(z) “Green Container” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982.2(a)(29) and shall 
be used for the purpose of storage and collection of Source Separated Green Container 
Organic Waste.  

(aa) “Greenhouse gas (GHG)” means carbon dioxide (CO2), methane (CH4), nitrous oxide 
(N2O), sulfur hexafluoride (SF6), hydrofluorocarbons (HFC), perfluorocarbons (PFC), and 
other fluorinated greenhouse gases as defined in this section. 

(bb) “Greenhouse gas emission reduction” or “greenhouse gas reduction” means actions 
designed to achieve a calculated decrease in greenhouse gas emissions over time. 

(cc) “Grocery Store” means a store primarily engaged in the retail sale of canned food; dry 
goods; fresh fruits and vegetables; fresh meats, fish, and poultry; and any area that is not 
separately owned within the store where the food is prepared and served, including a 
bakery, deli, and meat and seafood departments  

(dd) “Hauler Route” means the designated itinerary or sequence of stops for each segment of 
the District’s collection service area, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(31.5).  

 (ee) “Inspection” means a site visit where a District reviews records, containers, and an entity’s 
collection, handling, recycling, or landfill disposal of Organic Waste handling to determine 
if the entity is complying with requirements set forth in this ordinance, or as otherwise 
defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(35). For the purposes of Edible Food Recovery, 
“Inspection” means actions to review contracts and other records related to the recovery of 
Edible Food, and may occur off-site via email and other forms of electronic 
communication, as well as the on-site review of an entity’s records and collection, 
handling, and other procedures for the recovery of Edible Food to determine if the entity 
is complying with the requirements of this Ordinance.  

(ff) “Large Event” means an event, including, but not limited to, a sporting event or a flea 
market, that charges an admission price, or is operated by a local agency, and serves an 
average of more than 2,000 individuals per day of operation of the event, at a location that 
includes, but is not limited to, a public, nonprofit, or privately owned park, parking lot, golf 
course, street system, or other open space when being used for an event. If the definition 
in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(38) differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR 
Section 18982(a)(38) shall apply to this Ordinance. 

(gg) “Large Venue” means a permanent venue facility that annually seats or serves an average 
of more than 2,000 individuals within the grounds of the facility per day of operation of 
the venue facility. For purposes of this Ordinance and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 
7, Chapter 12, a venue facility includes, but is not limited to, a public, nonprofit, or 
privately owned or operated stadium, amphitheater, arena, hall, amusement park, 
conference or civic center, zoo, aquarium, airport, racetrack, horse track, performing arts 
center, fairground, museum, theater, or other public attraction facility. For purposes of this 



 
 

Ordinance and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, a site under common 
ownership or control that includes more than one Large Venue that is contiguous with other 
Large Venues in the site, is a single Large Venue. If the definition in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(39) differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(39) 
shall apply to this Ordinance. 

(hh) “Local Education Agency” means a school district, charter school, or county office of 
education that is not subject to the control of city or county regulations related to Solid 
Waste, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(40). 

(ii) “Multi-Family Residential Dwelling” or “Multi-Family” means of, from, or pertaining to 
residential premises with five (5) or more dwelling units. Multi-Family premises do not 
include hotels, motels, or other transient occupancy facilities, which are considered 
Commercial Businesses 

(jj) “Non-Compostable Paper” includes but is not limited to paper that is coated in a plastic 
material that will not breakdown in the composting process, or as otherwise defined in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(41).   

(kk) “Non-Local Entity” means the following entities that are not subject to the District’s 
enforcement authority, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(42): 

(1) Special district(s) located within the boundaries of the District. 

(2) Federal facilities, including military installations, located within the boundaries of 
the District.  

(3) Facilities operated by the State park system located within the boundaries of the 
District. 

(4) State agencies located within the boundaries of the District.  

(ll) “Non-Organic Recyclables” means non-putrescible and non-hazardous recyclable wastes 
including but not limited to bottles, cans, metals, plastics and glass, or as otherwise defined 
in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(43).  

(mm)  “Notice of Violation (NOV)” means a notice that a violation has occurred that includes a 
compliance date to avoid an action to seek penalties, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR 
Section 18982(a)(45) or further explained in 14 CCR Section 18995.4.  

(nn)  “Organic Waste” means Solid Wastes containing material originated from living organisms 
and their metabolic waste products, including but not limited to food, green material, 
landscape and pruning waste, organic textiles and carpets, lumber, wood, Paper Products, 
Printing and Writing Paper, manure, biosolids, digestate, and sludges or as otherwise 
defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(46). Biosolids and digestate are as defined by 14 CCR 
Section 18982(a).  



 
 

(oo)  “Organic Waste Generator” means a person or entity that is responsible for the initial 
creation of Organic Waste, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(48). 

(pp)  “Paper Products” include, but are not limited to, paper janitorial supplies, cartons, 
wrapping, packaging, file folders, hanging files, corrugated boxes, tissue, and toweling, or 
as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(51). 

(qq)  “Printing and Writing Papers” include, but are not limited to, copy, xerographic, 
watermark, cotton fiber, offset, forms, computer printout paper, white wove envelopes, 
manila envelopes, book paper, note pads, writing tablets, newsprint, and other uncoated 
writing papers, posters, index cards, calendars, brochures, reports, magazines, and 
publications, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(54). 

(rr)  “Prohibited Container Contaminants” means the following: (i) discarded materials placed 
in the Blue Container that are not identified as acceptable Source Separated Recyclable 
Materials for the District’s Blue Container; (ii) discarded materials placed in the Green 
Container that are not identified as acceptable Source Separated Green Container Organic 
Waste for the District’s Green Container; (iii) discarded materials placed in the Gray 
Container that are acceptable Source Separated Recyclable Materials and/or Source 
Separated Green Container Organic Wastes to be placed in District’s Green Container 
and/or Blue Container; and, (iv) Excluded Waste placed in any container.  

(ss) “Recovered Organic Waste Products” means products made from California, landfill-
diverted recovered Organic Waste processed in a permitted or otherwise authorized 
facility, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(60). 

(tt)  “Recovery” means any activity or process described in 14 CCR Section 18983.1(b), or as 
otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(49). 

(uu)  “Recycled-Content Paper” means Paper Products and Printing and Writing Paper that 
consists of at least 30 percent, by fiber weight, postconsumer fiber, or as otherwise defined 
in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(61). 

(vv) “Remote Monitoring” means the use of the internet of things (IoT) and/or wireless 
electronic devices to visualize the contents of Blue Containers, Green Containers, and Gray 
Containers for purposes of identifying the quantity of materials in containers (level of fill) 
and/or presence of Prohibited Container Contaminants.  

(ww)  “Restaurant” means an establishment primarily engaged in the retail sale of food and drinks 
for on-premises or immediate consumption, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(64). 

(xx)  “Route Review” means a visual Inspection of containers along a Hauler Route for the 
purpose of determining Container Contamination, and may include mechanical Inspection 
methods such as the use of cameras, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(65). 



 
 

(yy) “SB 1383” means Senate Bill 1383 of 2016 approved by the Governor on September 19, 
2016, which added Sections 39730.5, 39730.6, 39730.7, and 39730.8 to the Health and 
Safety Code, and added Chapter 13.1 (commencing with Section 42652) to Part 3 of 
Division 30 of the Public Resources Code, establishing methane emissions reduction 
targets in a Statewide effort to reduce emissions of short-lived climate pollutants as 
amended, supplemented, superseded, and replaced from time to time.  

(zz) “SB 1383 Regulations” or “SB 1383 Regulatory” means or refers to, for the purposes of 
this ordinance, the Short-Lived Climate Pollutants: Organic Waste Reduction regulations 
developed by CalRecycle and adopted in 2020 that created 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 
12 and amended portions of regulations of 14 CCR and 27 CCR.   

(aaa)  “Self-Hauler”, for the purposes of Edible Food Recovery, means a Commercial Edible 
Food Generator which holds a contract with and hauls Edible Food to a Food Recovery 
Organization or other site for redistribution according to the requirements of this 
Ordinance. 

(bbb)  “Single-Family” means of, from, or pertaining to any residential premises with fewer than 
five (5) units.   

(ccc)  “Solid Waste” has the same meaning as defined in State Public Resources Code Section 
40191, which defines Solid Waste as all putrescible and nonputrescible solid, semisolid, 
and liquid wastes, including garbage, trash, refuse, paper, rubbish, ashes, industrial wastes, 
demolition and construction wastes, abandoned vehicles and parts thereof, discarded home 
and industrial appliances, dewatered, treated, or chemically fixed sewage sludge which is 
not hazardous waste, manure, vegetable or animal solid and semi-solid wastes, and other 
discarded solid and semisolid wastes, with the exception that Solid Waste does not include 
any of the following wastes: 

(1) Hazardous waste, as defined in the State Public Resources Code Section 40141. 

(2) Radioactive waste regulated pursuant to the State Radiation Control Law (Chapter 
8 (commencing with Section 114960) of Part 9 of Division 104 of the State Health 
and Safety Code). 

(3) Medical waste regulated pursuant to the State Medical Waste Management Act 
(Part 14 (commencing with Section 117600) of Division 104 of the State Health 
and Safety Code). Untreated medical waste shall not be disposed of in a Solid Waste 
landfill, as defined in State Public Resources Code Section 40195.1. Medical waste 
that has been treated and deemed to be Solid Waste shall be regulated pursuant to 
Division 30 of the State Public Resources Code.  

(ddd) “Source Separated” means materials, including commingled recyclable materials, that have 
been separated or kept separate from the Solid Waste stream, at the point of generation, for 
the purpose of additional sorting or processing those materials for recycling or reuse in 
order to return them to the economic mainstream in the form of raw material for new, 
reused, or reconstituted products, which meet the quality standards necessary to be used in 
the marketplace, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 17402.5(b)(4). For the 



 
 

purposes of the ordinance, Source Separated shall include separation of materials by the 
generator, property owner, property owner’s employee, property manager, or property 
manager’s employee into different containers for the purpose of collection such that Source 
Separated materials are separated from Gray Container Waste or other Solid Waste for the 
purposes of collection and processing.   

(eee) “Source Separated Blue Container Organic Waste” means Source Separated Organic 
Wastes that can be placed in a Blue Container that is limited to the collection of those 
Organic Wastes and Non-Organic Recyclables as defined in Section 18982(a)(43), or as 
otherwise defined by Section 17402(a)(18.7).   

(fff) “Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste” means Source Separated Organic 
Waste that can be placed in a Green Container that is specifically intended for the separate 
collection of Organic Waste by the generator, excluding Source Separated Blue Container 
Organic Waste, carpets, Non-Compostable Paper, and textiles.   

(ggg) “Source Separated Recyclable Materials” means Source Separated Non-Organic 
Recyclables and Source Separated Blue Container Organic Waste.   

(hhh) “State” means the State of California.  

(iii) “Supermarket” means a full-line, self-service retail store with gross annual sales of two 
million dollars ($2,000,000), or more, and which sells a line of dry grocery, canned goods, 
or nonfood items and some perishable items, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(71). 

(jjj) “Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generator” means a Commercial Edible Food 
Generator that is one of the following: 

(1) Supermarket. 

(2) Grocery Store with a total facility size equal to or greater than 10,000 square feet. 

(3) Food Service Provider. 

(4) Food Distributor. 

(5) Wholesale Food Vendor. 

If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73) of Tier One Commercial Edible Food 
Generator differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73) 
shall apply to this Ordinance. 

 

(kkk) “Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator” means a Commercial Edible Food 
Generator that is one of the following: 



 
 

(1) Restaurant with 250 or more seats, or a total facility size equal to or greater than 
5,000 square feet. 

(2) Hotel with an on-site Food Facility and 200 or more rooms. 

(3) Health facility with an on-site Food Facility and 100 or more beds. 

(4) Large Venue. 

(5) Large Event. 

(6) A State agency with a cafeteria with 250 or more seats or total cafeteria facility size 
equal to or greater than 5,000 square feet. 

(7) A Local Education Agency facility with an on-site Food Facility. 

If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(74) of Tier Two Commercial Edible Food 
Generator differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(74) 
shall apply to this Ordinance. 

(lll) “Wholesale Food Vendor” means a business or establishment engaged in the merchant 
wholesale distribution of food, where food (including fruits and vegetables) is received, 
shipped, stored, prepared for distribution to a retailer, warehouse, distributor, or other 
destination, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 189852(a)(76). 

Section 304. (02) Requirements for Single Family Waste Generators. Single-Family Organic 
Waste Generators shall comply with the following requirements: 

(a) Shall subscribe to District’s Organic Waste collection services for all Organic Waste 
generated as described below in Section 304 (02)(b). District shall have the right to review 
the number and size of a generator’s containers to evaluate adequacy of capacity provided 
for each type of collection service for proper separation of materials and containment of 
materials; and, Single-Family generators shall adjust its service level for its collection 
services as requested by the District.  

(b) Shall participate in the District’s Organic Waste collection service(s) by placing designated 
materials in designated containers as described below, and shall not place Prohibited 
Container Contaminants in collection containers.  

(1) A three-container collection service (Blue Container, Green Container, and Gray 
Container). Generator shall place Source Separated Green Container Organic 
Waste, including Food Waste, in the Green Container; Source Separated 
Recyclable Materials in the Blue Container; and Gray Container Waste in the Gray 
Container; in each case, solely to the extent such materials are acceptable materials 
in the applicable container under the franchise agreement between the District and 
the exclusive franchised hauler. Generators shall not place materials designated for 
the Gray Container into the Green Container or Blue Container. 

Antoinette Ranit
Want to confirm that this is the system GCSD uses for collection. There is also language for a two-container collection service and an unsegregated single container collection service. 



 
 

Section 304. (03) Requirements for Commercial Businesses. Generators that are Commercial 
Businesses, including Multi-Family Residential Dwellings, shall:  

 (a) Subscribe to District’s three-container collection services and comply with requirements 
of those services as described below in Section 304 (03)(b). District shall have the right to 
review the number and size of a generator’s containers and frequency of collection to 
evaluate adequacy of capacity provided for each type of collection service for proper 
separation of materials and containment of materials; and, Commercial Businesses shall 
adjust their service level for their collection services as requested by the District.  

(b) Participate in the District’s Organic Waste collection service(s) by placing designated 
materials in designated containers as described below:   

(1) A three-container collection service (Blue Container, Green Container, and Gray 
Container.) Generator shall place Source Separated Green Container Organic 
Waste, including Food Waste, in the Green Container; Source Separated 
Recyclable Materials in the Blue Container; and Gray Container Waste in the Gray 
Container in each case, solely to the extent such materials are acceptable materials 
in the applicable container under the franchise agreement between the District and 
the exclusive franchised hauler.  Generators shall not place materials designated for 
the Gray Container into the Green Container or Blue Container. 

 (c) Supply and allow access to adequate number, size and location of collection containers 
with sufficient labels or colors (conforming with Sections 304 (03)(d)(1) and (03)(d)(2) 
below) for employees, contractors, tenants, and customers, consistent with District’s Blue 
Container, Green Container, and Gray Container collection service. 

(d) Excluding Multi-Family Residential Dwellings, provide containers for the collection of 
Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste and Source Separated Recyclable 
Materials in all indoor and outdoor areas where disposal containers are provided for 
customers, for materials generated by that business. Such containers do not need to be 
provided in restrooms. If a Commercial Business does not generate any of the materials 
that would be collected in one type of container, then the business does not have to provide 
that particular container in all areas where disposal containers are provided for customers. 
Pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.9(b), the containers provided by the business shall have 
either:  

(1) A body or lid that conforms with the container colors provided through the 
collection service provided by District, with either lids conforming to the color 
requirements or bodies conforming to the color requirements or both lids and bodies 
conforming to color requirements. A Commercial Business is not required to 
replace functional containers, including containers purchased prior to January 1, 
2022, that do not comply with the requirements of the subsection prior to the end 
of the useful life of those containers, or prior to January 1, 2036, whichever comes 
first.  

Antoinette Ranit
Same as above question – confirming GCSD uses a three-container collection service. 



 
 

(2) Container labels that include language or graphic images, or both, indicating the 
primary material accepted and the primary materials prohibited in that container, or 
containers with imprinted text or graphic images that indicate the primary materials 
accepted and primary materials prohibited in the container. Pursuant 14 CCR 
Section 18984.8, the container labeling requirements are required on new 
containers commencing January 1, 2022. 

(e) Multi-Family Residential Dwellings are not required to comply with container placement 
requirements or labeling requirement in Section (03)(d) pursuant to 14 CCR Section 
18984.9(b).   

(f) To the extent practical through education, training, Inspection, and/or other measures, 
excluding Multi-Family Residential Dwellings, prohibit employees from placing materials 
in a container not designated for those materials per the District’s Blue Container, Green 
Container, and Gray Container collection service.    

(g) Excluding Multi-Family Residential Dwellings, periodically inspect Blue Containers, 
Green Containers, and Gray Containers for contamination and inform employees if 
containers are contaminated and of the requirements to keep contaminants out of those 
containers pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.9(b)(3). 

(h) Annually provide information to employees, contractors, tenants, and customers about 
Organic Waste Recovery requirements and about proper sorting of Source Separated Green 
Container Organic Waste and Source Separated Recyclable Materials.  

(i) Provide education information before or within fourteen (14) days of occupation of the 
premises to new tenants that describes requirements to keep Source Separated Green 
Container Organic Waste and Source Separated Recyclable Materials separate from Gray 
Container Waste (when applicable) and the location of containers and the rules governing 
their use at each property. 

(j) Provide or arrange access for District or its agent to their properties during all Inspections 
conducted in accordance with Section 304 (09) of this ordinance to confirm compliance 
with the requirements of this ordinance. 

(k) Accommodate and cooperate with District’s Remote Monitoring program for Inspection of 
the contents of containers for Prohibited Container Contaminants, which may be 
implemented at a later day, to evaluate generator’s compliance with Section 304(03)(b). 
The Remote Monitoring program shall involve installation of Remote Monitoring 
equipment on or in the Blue Containers, Green Containers, and Gray Containers, subject 
to obtaining the prior written consent of the exclusive franchised hauler or other third party 
that owns the Blue Containers, Green Containers and Gray Containers.”   

(l) At Commercial Business’s option and subject to any approval required from the District, 
implement a Remote Monitoring program for Inspection of the contents of its Blue 
Containers, Green Containers,  and Gray Containers for the purpose of monitoring the 
contents of containers to determine appropriate levels of service and to identify Prohibited 
Container Contaminants. Generators may install Remote Monitoring devices on or in the 



 
 

Blue Containers, Green Containers, and Gray Containers subject to written notification to 
or approval by the District or its Designee, and subject to obtaining the prior written consent 
of the exclusive franchised hauler or other third party that owns the Blue Containers, Green 
Containers and Gray Containers.   

(m) Commercial Businesses that are Tier One or Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators 
shall comply with Edible Food Recovery requirements contained in Section 304 (05) of 
this Ordinance, including the self-hauling provisions. 

(n) Nothing in this Section prohibits a generator from preventing or reducing waste generation, 
managing Organic Waste on site, or using a Community Composting site pursuant to 14 
CCR Section 18984.9(c). 

(o) Commercial Businesses that are Tier One or Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators 
shall comply with Food Recovery requirements, pursuant to Section 304 (05).  

Section 304. (04) Waivers for Generators.  The District may allow, at its option, to grant waivers 
to generators under the following circumstances:   

(a) De Minimis. The District may waive a Commercial Business’ obligation (including Multi-
Family Residential Dwellings) to comply with some or all of the Organic Waste 
requirements of this ordinance if the Commercial Business provides documentation that 
the business generates below a certain amount of Organic Waste material as described in 
Section 304 (04)(a)(2) below. Commercial Businesses requesting a de minimus waiver 
shall:    

(1) Submit an application specifying the services that they are requesting a waiver from 
and provide documentation as noted in Section 304 (04)(a)(2) below.  

(2) Provide documentation that either: 

(A) The Commercial Business’ total Solid Waste collection service is two cubic 
yards or more per week and Organic Waste subject to collection in a Blue 
Container or Green Container comprises less than 20 gallons per week per 
applicable container of the business’ total waste; or, 

(B) The Commercial Business’ total Solid Waste collection service is less than 
two cubic yards per week and Organic Waste subject to collection in a Blue 
Container or Green Container comprises less than 10 gallons per week per 
applicable container of the business’ total waste. 

(3) Notify District if circumstances change such that Commercial Business’s Organic 
Waste exceeds threshold required for waiver, in which case waiver will be 
rescinded. 

(4) Provide written verification of eligibility for de minimis waiver every 5 years, if 
District has approved de minimis waiver. 



 
 

(b) Physical Space Waivers. The District may waive a Commercial Business’ or property 
owner’s obligations (including Multi-Family Residential Dwellings) to comply with some 
or all of the recyclable materials and/or Organic Waste collection service requirements if 
the District has evidence from its own staff, a hauler, licensed architect, or licensed 
engineer demonstrating that the premises lacks adequate space for the collection containers 
required for compliance with the Organic Waste collection requirements of Section 304 
(03). 

A Commercial Business or property owner may request a physical space waiver through 
the following process:  

(1) Submit an application form specifying the type(s) of collection services for which 
they are requesting a compliance waiver. 

(2) Provide documentation that the premises lacks adequate space for Blue Containers 
and/or Green  including documentation from its hauler, licensed architect, or 
licensed engineer.  

(3) Provide written verification to District that it is still eligible for physical space 
waiver every five years, if District has approved application for a physical space 
waiver.  

(c) Review and Approval of Waivers by District. The Board of Directors approves all waivers.  

 

Section 304. (05) Requirements for Tier One and Tier Two Commercial Edible Food 
Generators 

(a) Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generators must comply with the requirements of this 
Section commencing January 1, 2022, and Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators 
must comply commencing January 1, 2024, pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.3.  

(b) Large Venue or Large Event operators not providing food services, but allowing for food 
to be provided by others, shall require Food Facilities operating at the Large Venue or 
Large Event to comply with the requirements of this Section, commencing January 1, 2024. 

(c) Tier One and Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators shall comply with the 
following requirements:  

(1) Arrange to recover the maximum amount of Edible Food that would otherwise be 
disposed. 

(2) Contract with, or enter into a written agreement with Food Recovery Organizations 
or Food Recovery Services for: (i) the collection of Edible Food for Food Recovery; 
or, (ii) acceptance of the Edible Food that the Commercial Edible Food Generator 
self-hauls to the Food Recovery Organization for Food Recovery.  



 
 

(3) Shall not intentionally spoil Edible Food that is capable of being recovered by a 
Food Recovery Organization or a Food Recovery Service. 

(4) Allow District or designated third party enforcement entity to access the premises 
and review records pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.4.  

(5) Keep records that include the following information: 

(A) A list of each Food Recovery Organization or a Food Recovery Service that 
collects or receives Edible Food from the Tier One or Tier Two Commercial 
Edible Food Generator pursuant to a contract or written agreement as 
required by this Ordinance. 

(B) A copy of all contracts or written agreements established under the 
provisions of this Ordinance. 

(C) A record of the following information for each of those Food Recovery 
Services or Food Recovery Organizations: 

(i) The name, address and contact information of the Food Recovery 
Service or Food Recovery Organization. 

(ii) The types of food that will be collected by or self-hauled to the Food 
Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization. 

(iii) The established schedule or frequency that food will be collected or 
self-hauled. 

(iv) The quantity of food, measured in pounds recovered per month, 
collected or self-hauled to a Food Recovery Service or Food 
Recovery Organization for Food Recovery.  

(6) No later than June 30th of each year commencing no later than July 1, 2022 for Tier 
One Commercial Edible Food Generators and July 1, 2024 for Tier  Two 
Commercial Edible Food Generators, they shall provide an annual Edible Food 
Recovery report to the Designee for Edible Food Recovery that includes, but is not 
limited to, the following information: a list of all contracts with Food Recovery 
Organizations and Food Recovery Services, the amount and type of Edible Food 
donated to Food Recovery Organizations and Food Recovery Services, the 
schedule of Edible Food pickup by Food Recovery Organizations and Food 
Recovery Services, a list of all types of Edible Food categories they generate, such 
as “baked goods,” that are not accepted by the Food Recovery Organizations and 
Food Recovery Services with whom they contract, the contact information for the 
manager and all staff responsible for Edible Food Recovery, and certification that 
all staff responsible for  Edible Food Recovery have obtained a food handler card 
through an American National Standards Institute (ANSI) accredited training 
provider that meets ASTM International E2659-09 Standard Practice for Certificate 
Programs, such as ServSafe. With the exception of the food safety and handling 



 
 

training certification, Tier One and Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators 
may coordinate with their Edible Food Recovery contractors to supply this 
information. The Designee for Edible Food Recovery  will assist in the preparation 
of these reports by providing guidance and a template located on the County of San 
Mateo Office of Sustainability website. 

 (8) Mandate their Edible Food Recovery staff learn and follow the donation guidelines  
and attend trainings conducted by Food Recovery Organizations or Food Recovery 
Services with which they contract regarding best practices and requirements for the 
timely identification, selection, preparation, and storage of Edible Food to ensure 
the maximum amount of Edible Food is recovered and to avoid supplying food for 
collection that is moldy, has been improperly stored, or is otherwise unfit for human 
consumption. 

(9)  Tier One and Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators who self-haul Edible 
Food shall require those transporting Edible Food for recovery to obtain a food 
handler card through an American National Standards Institute (ANSI) accredited 
training provider that meets ASTM International E2659-09 Standard Practice for 
Certificate Programs, such as ServSafe and follow the best practices and standards 
for proper temperature control, methods, and procedures for the safe handling and 
transport of food. 

(d) Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to limit or conflict with the protections 
provided by the California Good Samaritan Food Donation Act of 2017, the Federal Good 
Samaritan Act, or share table and school food donation guidance pursuant to Senate Bill 
557 of 2017 (approved by the Governor of the State of California on September 25, 2017, 
which added Article 13 [commencing with Section 49580] to Chapter 9 of Part 27 of 
Division 4 of Title 2 of the Education Code, and to amend Section 114079 of the Health 
and Safety Code, relating to food safety, as amended, supplemented, superseded and 
replaced from time to time). 

 

Section 304. (06) Requirements for Food Recovery Organizations and Services 

(a) Food Recovery Services operating in the District and collecting or receiving Edible Food 
directly from Tier One and/or Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators via a contract 
or written agreement established under the requirements of this Ordinance, shall maintain 
the following records: 

(1) The name, address, and contact information for each Tier One and Tier Two 
Commercial Edible Food Generator from which the service collects Edible Food. 

(2) The quantity in pounds of Edible Food by type collected from each Tier One and 
Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator per month. 

(3) The quantity in pounds of Edible Food by type transported to each Food Recovery 
Organization or redistribution site per month. 



 
 

(4) The name, address, and contact information for each Food Recovery Organization 
or redistribution site that the Food Recovery Service transports Edible Food to for 
Edible Food Recovery. 

(b) Food Recovery Organizations operating in the District and collecting or receiving Edible 
Food directly from Tier One and/or Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators via a 
contract or written agreement established under the requirements of this Ordinance, or 
receiving Edible Food from Food Recovery Services or from other Food Recovery 
Organizations, shall maintain the following records: 

(1) The name, address, and contact information for each Tier One and Tier Two 
Commercial Edible Food Generator, Food Recovery Service, or other Food 
Recovery Organization from which the organization collects or receives Edible 
Food.  

(2) The quantity in pounds of Edible Food by type collected or received from each Tier 
One or Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator, Food Recovery Service, or 
other Food Recovery Organization per month. 

 (3) The name, address, and contact information for other Food Recovery Organizations 
or redistribution sites that the Food Recovery Organization transports Edible Food 
to for Edible Food Recovery. 

(c) Food Recovery Organizations and Food Recovery Services operating in the District shall 
inform Tier One and Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators from which they 
collect or receive Edible Food about California and Federal Good Samaritan Food 
Donation Act protection in written communications, such as in their contract or agreement 
established as required by this Ordinance. 

(d) Food Recovery Organizations and Food Recovery Services that have their primary address 
physically located in the District and contract with or have written agreements with one or 
more Commercial Edible Food Generators pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b) shall 
report to the District the total pounds of Edible Food recovered in the previous calendar 
year from the Tier One and Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators they have 
established a contract or written agreement with pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b) 
no later than _______. 

e) Food Recovery Capacity Planning  

(1) Food Recovery Services and Food Recovery Organizations. In order to support 
Edible Food Recovery capacity planning assessments or other studies conducted by 
the County, City, special district that provides solid waste collection services, or its 
designated entity, Food Recovery Services and Food Recovery Organizations 
operating in the District shall provide information and consultation to the District, 
upon request, regarding existing, or proposed new or expanded, Food Recovery 
capacity that could be accessed by the District and its Commercial Edible Food 
Generators. A Food Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization contacted 

Antoinette Ranit
Please insert date. 



 
 

by the District shall respond to such request for information within 60 days, unless 
a shorter timeframe is otherwise specified by the District.  

Section 304. (06) Requirements for Haulers and Facility Operators 

(a) Requirements for Haulers  

 (1) All exclusive franchised haulers and/or non-exclusive franchised haulers and/or 
permitted haulers and/or licensed haulers as are authorized by the District to 
provide residential, Commercial, or industrial Organic Waste collection services to 
generators within the District’s boundaries shall meet the following requirements 
and standards as a condition of approval of a contract, agreement, or other 
authorization with the District to collect Organic Waste: 

(A) Through written notice to the District as specified in its franchise 
agreement, permit, license, or other agreement entered into with the District, 
identify the facilities to which they will transport Organic Waste including 
facilities for Source Separate Recyclable Materials and Source Separated 
Green Container Organic Waste.  

(B) Transport Source Separated Recyclable Materials, Source Separate Green 
Container Organic Waste to a facility, operation, activity, or property that 
recovers Organic Waste as defined in 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, 
Article 2, in each case to the extent specified in its franchise agreement, 
permit, license, or other agreement entered into with the District.   

(C) Obtain approval from the District to haul Organic Waste, unless already 
contained in its franchise agreement, permit, license, or other agreement 
entered into with the District.  

(2) All exclusive franchised haulers and/or non-exclusive franchised haulers and/or 
permitted haulers and/or licensed haulers authorized to collect Organic Waste shall 
comply with education, equipment, signage, container labeling, container color, 
contamination monitoring, reporting, and other requirements contained within its 
franchise agreement, permit, license, or other agreement entered into with the 
District.    

(b) Requirements for Facility Operators and Community Composting Operations. 

(1) Owners of facilities, operations, and activities that recover Organic Waste, 
including, but not limited to, Compost facilities, in-vessel digestion facilities, and 
publicly-owned treatment works shall, upon District request, provide information 
regarding available and potential new or expanded capacity at their facilities, 
operations, and activities, including information about throughput and permitted 
capacity necessary for planning purposes. Entities contacted by the District shall 
respond within 60 days.   

Section 304. (07) Requirements for Self-Haulers  



 
 

(a) Self-Haulers shall source separate all recyclable materials and Organic Waste (materials 
that the District otherwise requires generators to separate for collection in the District’s 
organics and recycling collection program) generated on-site from Solid Waste in a 
manner consistent with 14 CCR Sections 18984.1 and 18984.2, or shall haul Organic 
Waste to a High Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facility as specified in 14 CCR 
Section 18984.3. 

(b) Self-Haulers shall haul their Source Separated Recyclable Materials to a facility that 
recovers those materials; and haul their Source Separated Green Container Organic 
Waste to a Solid Waste facility, operation, activity, or property that processes or recovers 
Source Separated Organic Waste. Alternatively, Self-Haulers may haul Organic Waste to 
a High Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facility. 

(c) Self-Haulers that are Commercial Businesses (including Multi-Family Residential 
Dwellings) shall keep a record of the amount of Organic Waste delivered to each Solid 
Waste facility, operation, activity, or property that processes or recovers Organic Waste; 
this record shall be subject to Inspection by the District. The records shall include the 
following information: 

(1) Delivery receipts and weight tickets from the entity accepting the waste. 

(2) The amount of material in cubic yards or tons transported by the generator to each 
entity. 

(3) If the material is transported to an entity that does not have scales on-site, or 
employs scales incapable of weighing the Self-Hauler’s vehicle in a manner that 
allows it to determine the weight of materials received, the Self-Hauler is not 
required to record the weight of material but shall keep a record of the entities that 
received the Organic Waste. 

(d) A residential Organic Waste Generator that self hauls Organic Waste is not required to 
record or report information in Section 304 (07)(c) and (d). 

Section 304. (08) Procurement Requirements for District Departments, Direct Service 
Providers, and Vendors 

(a) District departments, and direct service providers to the District, as applicable, must 
comply with the District’s Recovered Organic Waste Product procurement policy and 
Recycled-Content Paper procurement policy.  

(b) All vendors providing Paper Products and Printing and Writing Paper shall comply with 
the District’s Organic Waste Product procurement policy and Recycled-Content Paper 
procurement policy.   

Section 304. (09) Inspections and Investigations by District 

(a) District representatives and/or its designated entity, including the Designee for Edible Food 
Recovery are authorized to conduct Inspections and investigations, at random or otherwise, 



 
 

of any collection container, collection vehicle loads, or transfer, processing, or disposal 
facility for materials collected from generators, or Source Separated materials to confirm 
compliance with this Ordinance by Organic Waste Generators, Commercial Businesses 
(including Multi-Family Residential Dwellings), property owners, Tier One and Tier Two 
Commercial Edible Food Generators, haulers, Self-Haulers, Food Recovery Services, and 
Food Recovery Organizations, subject to applicable laws. This Section does not allow 
District to enter the interior of a private residential property for Inspection. For the purposes 
of inspection Commercial Business containers for compliance with Section 304 (03)(b) of 
this Ordinance, District may conduct container inspections for Prohibited Container 
Contaminants using Remote Monitoring, and Commercial Businesses shall accommodate 
and cooperate with the Remote Monitoring pursuant to Section 304 (03)(k) of this 
Ordinance. 

(b) Regulated entity shall provide or arrange for access during all Inspections (with the 
exception of residential property interiors) and shall cooperate with the District’s employee 
or its designated entity/Designee for Edible Food Recovery during such Inspections and 
investigations.  Such Inspections and investigations may include confirmation of proper 
placement of materials in containers, Edible Food Recovery activities, records, or any other 
requirement of this Ordinance described herein.  Failure to provide or arrange for: (i) access 
to an entity’s premises; or (ii) access to records for any Inspection or investigation is a 
violation of this Ordinance and may result in penalties described.   

(c) Any records obtained by a District during its Inspections, Remote Monitoring, and other 
reviews shall be subject to the requirements and applicable disclosure exemptions of the 
Public Records Act as set forth in Government Code Section 6250 et seq.  

(d) District representatives, its designated entity, and/or Designee for Edible Food Recovery 
are authorized to conduct any Inspections, Remote Monitoring, or other investigations as 
reasonably necessary to further the goals of this Ordinance, subject to applicable laws.   

(e) District shall receive written complaints from persons regarding an entity that may be 
potentially non-compliant with SB 1383 Regulations, including receipt of anonymous 
complaints.  

Section 304. (10) Enforcement 

(a) Violation of any provision of this Ordinance shall constitute grounds for issuance of a 
Notice of Violation and assessment of a fine by the District, Designee for Edible Food 
Recovery, or representative. Enforcement Actions under this Ordinance are issuance of an 
administrative citation and assessment of a fine. The District’s procedures on imposition 
of administrative fines are hereby incorporated in their entirety, as modified from time to 
time, and shall govern the imposition, enforcement, collection, and review of 
administrative citations issued to enforce this Ordinance and any rule or regulation adopted 
pursuant to this Ordinance, except as otherwise indicated in this Ordinance.   

(b) Other remedies allowed by law may be used, including civil action or prosecution as 
misdemeanor or infraction. District or Designee for Edible Food Recovery may pursue 
civil actions in the California courts to seek recovery of unpaid administrative citations.  



 
 

District or Designee for Edible Food Recovery may choose to delay court action until such 
time as a sufficiently large number of violations, or cumulative size of violations exist such 
that court action is a reasonable use of District or Designee for Edible Food Recovery staff 
and resources.  

(c) Responsible Entity for Enforcement 

(1) Enforcement pursuant to this Ordinance may be undertaken by the District, or the 
District’s  designee.   

(2) Enforcement may also be undertaken by a Designee for Edible Food Recovery, 
designated by the District.  

(A) District’s designee for Edible Food Recovery will interpret Ordinance; 
determine the applicability of waivers, if violation(s) have occurred; 
implement Enforcement Actions; and, determine if compliance standards 
are met.  

(B) District’s designee for Edible Food Recovery may issue Notices of 
Violation(s).  

 (d) Process for Enforcement 

(1) District or district’s designee for Edible Food Recovery will monitor compliance 
with the Ordinance randomly and through Compliance Reviews, Route Reviews, 
investigation of complaints, and an Inspection program (that may include Remote 
Monitoring).  Section 304 (09) establishes District’s and Designee for Edible Food 
Recovery’s right to conduct Inspections and investigations.  

(2) District or its Designee for Edible Food Recovery may issue an official notification 
to notify regulated entities of its obligations under the Ordinance.  

(3) Assessing contamination processing fees/penalties. For incidences of Prohibited 
Container Contaminants found in containers, District will issue a Notice of 
Violation to any generator found to have Prohibited Container Contaminants in a 
container. Such notice will be provided via a cart tag or other communication 
immediately upon identification of the Prohibited Container Contaminants or 
within three (3) days after determining that a violation has occurred. If the District 
observes Prohibited Container Contaminants in a generator’s containers on more 
than two (2) consecutive occasion(s), the District may assess contamination 
processing fees or contamination penalties on the generator.    

For the purposes of Edible Food Recovery, incidences of Prohibited Container 
Contaminants found in containers, the District or its Designee for Edible Food 
Recovery will issue a Notice of Violation to any Tier One or Tier Two Commercial 
Edible Food Generator found to have Prohibited Container Contaminants, such as 
Edible Food, in a container, or to any Food Recovery Organization or Food 
Recovery Service found to have Prohibited Container Contaminants, such as Edible 



 
 

Food recovered from a Tier One or Tier Two Edible Food Generator, in a container, 
which has not been documented by a notice of significant spoilage as required in 
this Ordinance. Such notice will be provided by email communication immediately 
upon identification of the Prohibited Container Contaminants or within 3 days after 
determining that a violation has occurred. If the District or its Designee for Edible 
Food Recovery observes Prohibited Container Contaminants, such as Edible Food, 
in a Tier One or Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator, or Food Recovery 
Organization, or Food Recovery Service container on more than two (2) 
consecutive occasion(s), the District or its Designee for Edible Food Recovery may 
assess contamination processing fees or contamination penalties on the Tier One or 
Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator, Food Recovery Organization, or 
Food Recovery Service. 

(4) With the exception of violations of generator contamination of container contents 
addressed under Section 304 (10)(d)(3), District shall issue a Notice of Violation 
requiring compliance within 60 days of issuance of the notice. For the purposes of 
Edible Food Recovery, the Designee for Edible Food Recovery may issue a Notice 
of Violation requiring compliance within 7 days of issuance of the Notice.   

(5) Absent compliance by the respondent within the deadline set forth in the Notice of 
Violation, District shall commence an action to impose  penalties, via an 
administrative citation and fine, pursuant to the District’s requirements contained 
in Section 304 (10)(k), Table 1, List of Violations.    

For the purposes of Edible Food Recovery, the Designee for Edible Food Recovery 
shall commence an action to impose penalties, via an administrative citation and 
fine, pursuant to the Edible Food Recovery Penalties’ provisions contained in this 
Ordinance. 

Notices shall be sent to “owner” at the official address of the owner maintained by 
the tax collector for the District or if no such address is available, to the owner at 
the address of the dwelling or Commercial property or to the party responsible for 
paying for the collection services, depending upon available information  

(e) Penalty Amounts for Types of Violations 

The penalty levels for Edible Food Recovery violations are as follows:  

(1) For a first violation, the amount of the base penalty shall be $100 to $200 per 
violation.  

(2) For a second violation, the amount of the base penalty shall be $200-$500 per 
violation. 

(3) For a third or subsequent violation, the amount of the base penalty shall be $500 to 
$2000 per violation.  

(f) Factors Considered in Determining Penalty Amount  



 
 

The following factors shall be used to determine the amount of the penalty for each 
violation within the appropriate penalty amount range: 

(1) The nature, circumstances, and severity of the violation(s). 

(2) The violator’s ability to pay. 

(3) The willfulness of the violator's misconduct. 

(4) Whether the violator took measures to avoid or mitigate violations of this chapter. 

(5) Evidence of any economic benefit resulting from the violation(s). 

(6) The deterrent effect of the penalty on the violator. 

(7) Whether the violation(s) were due to conditions outside the control of the violator.  

(g) Compliance Deadline Extension Considerations 

The District may extend the compliance deadlines set forth in a Notice of Violation issued 
in accordance with Section 304 (10)(d) if it finds that there are extenuating circumstances 
beyond the control of the respondent that make compliance within the deadlines 
impracticable, including the following: 

(1) Acts of God such as earthquakes, wildfires, flooding, and other emergencies or 
natural disasters; 

(2) Delays in obtaining discretionary permits or other government agency approvals; 
or, 

(3) Deficiencies in Organic Waste recycling infrastructure or Edible Food Recovery 
capacity and the District is under a corrective action plan with CalRecycle pursuant 
to 14 CCR Section 18996.2 due to those deficiencies. 

(h) Appeals Process 

Persons receiving an administrative citation containing a penalty for an uncorrected 
violation may request a hearing to appeal the citation.  A hearing will be held only if it is 
requested within the time prescribed and consistent with District’s or Designee for Edible 
Food Recovery’s procedures in the District’s or the Designee for Edible Food Recovery’s 
codes for appeals of administrative citations. Evidence may be presented at the hearing. 
The District or Designee for Edible Food Recovery will appoint a hearing officer who 
shall conduct the hearing and issue a final written order.  

(i) Education Period for Non-Compliance  

Beginning January 1, 2022 and through December 31, 2023, District or Designee for 
Edible Food Recovery will conduct Inspections, Remote Monitoring,  Route Reviews or 



 
 

waste evaluations, and Compliance Reviews, depending upon the type of regulated entity, 
to determine compliance, and if the District or Designee for Edible Food Recovery 
determines that an Organic Waste Generator, Self-Hauler, hauler, Tier One Commercial 
Edible Food Generator, Food Recovery Organization, Food Recovery Service, or other 
entity is not in compliance, it shall provide educational materials and/or, for the purposes 
of Edible Food Recovery, training to the entity describing its obligations under this 
Ordinance and a notice that compliance is required by January 1, 2022, and that 
violations may be subject to administrative civil penalties starting on January 1, 2024.  

(j) Civil Penalties for Non-Compliance 

Beginning January 1, 2024, if the District or Designee for Edible Food Recovery 
determines that an Organic Waste Generator, Self-Hauler, hauler, Tier One or Tier Two 
Commercial Edible Food Generator, Food Recovery Organization, Food Recovery 
Service, or other entity is not in compliance with this Ordinance, it shall document the 
noncompliance or violation, issue a  Notice of Violation, and take Enforcement Action 
pursuant to Section 304 (10), as needed.   

(k) Enforcement Table 

Table 1. List of Violations  

Requirement Description of Violation 

Commercial Business and 
Commercial Business Owner 
Responsibility Requirement 

  

Commercial Business fails to provide or arrange for 
Organic Waste collection services consistent with District 
requirements and as outlined in this ordinance, for 
employees, contractors, tenants, and customers, including 
supplying and allowing access to adequate numbers, size, 
and location of containers and sufficient signage and 
container color. 

Organic Waste Generator 
Requirement 

  

Organic Waste Generator fails to comply with 
requirements adopted pursuant to this ordinance for the 
collection and Recovery of Organic Waste. 

Hauler Requirement 

    

A hauler providing residential, Commercial or industrial 
Organic Waste collection service fails to transport Organic 
Waste to a facility, operation, activity, or property that 
recovers Organic Waste, as prescribed by this ordinance. 

Hauler Requirement 

   

A hauler providing residential, Commercial, or industrial 
Organic Waste collection service fails to obtain applicable 
approval issued by the District to haul Organic Waste as 
prescribed by this ordinance. 



 
 

Hauler Requirement 

  

A hauler fails to keep a record of the applicable 
documentation of its approval by the District, as prescribed 
by this ordinance. 

Commercial Edible Food 
Generator Requirement  

   

Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generator fails to 
arrange to recover the maximum amount of its Edible Food 
that would otherwise be disposed by establishing a contract 
or written agreement with a Food Recovery Organization 
or Food Recovery Service and comply with this Section 
commencing Jan. 1, 2022.  

Commercial Edible Food 
Generator Requirement 

  

Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator fails to 
arrange to recover the maximum amount of its Edible Food 
that would otherwise be disposed by establishing a contract 
or written agreement with a Food Recovery Organization 
or Food Recovery Service and comply with this Section 
commencing Jan. 1, 2024. 

Commercial Edible Food 
Generator Requirement 

  

Tier One or Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator 
intentionally spoils Edible Food that is capable of being 
recovered by a Food Recovery Organization or Food 
Recovery Service. 

Organic Waste Generator, 
Commercial Business Owner, 
Commercial Edible Food 
Generator, Food Recovery 
Organization or Food Recovery 
Service   

Failure to provide or arrange for access to an entity’s 
premises for any Inspection or investigation.  

Recordkeeping Requirements 
for Commercial Edible Food 
Generator  

Tier One or Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator 
fails to keep records, as prescribed by Section 304 (05).  

Recordkeeping Requirements 
for Food Recovery Services and 
Food Recovery Organizations 

  

A Food Recovery Organization or Food Recovery Service 
that has established a contract or written agreement to 
collect or receive Edible Food directly from a Commercial 
Edible Food Generator pursuant to 14 CCR Section 
18991.3(b) fails to keep records, as prescribed by Section 
304 (06). 

SECTION 3. The District Board finds that this Ordinance is exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Sections 15061(b)(3) 
and 15308 on the grounds that it can be seen with certainty that the enhanced solid waste 
regulations, as provided for in this Ordinance will not have a significant effect on the environment 
and that the new requirements, which strengthen requirements for the handling of solid waste, 
represent actions by a regulatory agency (the District) for the protection of the environment.  



 
 

SECTION 4. Effective. Operative Date. Upon adoption, this Ordinance shall be entered 
in the minutes of the Board and posted for one week in three (3) public places in the District, and 
shall be operative from and after January 1, 2022.  

The above and foregoing Ordinance was regularly introduced at a meeting of the Board of 
Directors of the Granada Community Services District held on the 18th day of November 2021, 
and thereafter passed and adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Granada 
Community Services District on the 16th day of December 2021, by the following vote:  
 

AYES: and in favor thereof:   
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  

 
 Approved: 
 
 
                                                                                    _____________________________ 
                                                                                    Matthew Clark, President  
 
 
Attest:  
 
 
_________________________________ 
Delia Comito, Secretary  
 





- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM #5 



 

 

 

 

 



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

              AGENDA MEMORANDUM   

 
To: Board of Directors 

From: Delia Comito, Assistant General Manager 

Subject:   Consideration of MOU with the County of San Mateo for Establishment of  
                Edible Food Recover Program 
 

Date: November 18, 2021 

 
Recology of the Coast General Manger Chris Porter has provided the attached draft MOU 
between the District and the County of San Mateo, which will designate responsibility to 
the County’s Office of Sustainability for the District’s SB 1383 edible food recovery 
requirements effective January 1, 2022.  In order for this to happen, the District must 
adopt the agreement and the GCSD ordinance establishing SB 1383 with the County’s 
edible food recovery regulations language inserted verbatim, by December 31, 2021. 

Chris Porter will provide more details at the meeting. 

 

 





1 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  
BETWEEN JURISDICTION OF [NAME] AND COUNTY OF SAN MATEO FOR THE 
ESTABLISHMENT OF AN EDIBLE FOOD RECOVERY PROGRAM CONSISTENT 

WITH CALIFORNIA CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 14, DIVISION 7, CHAPTER 
12 SHORT-LIVED CLIMATE POLLUTANTS 

 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU), entered into this 1st day of 
December 2021, by and between the County of San Mateo, hereinafter called "the County" and 
the “Jurisdiction”, hereinafter called "the Jurisdiction"; 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, the County’s Board of Supervisors has enacted a Mandatory Organic Waste 
Disposal Reduction Ordinance as required by the California Code of Regulations, Title 14, 
Division 7, Chapter 12 Short-Lived Climate Pollutants; and 

WHEREAS, to promote consistency within jurisdictions throughout San Mateo County 
and leverage economies of scale, the County has offered to lead the creation of a County-wide 
Edible Food Recovery Program on behalf of the unincorporated areas of the county and all the 
jurisdictions in the county; and 

WHEREAS, the [jurisdiction’s xx Council] adopted this Memorandum of 
Understanding on [date] and authorizes the County to operate an Edible Food Recovery Program 
on behalf of and within the Jurisdiction. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED BY THE PARTIES HERETO AS 
FOLLOWS: 

1. Tasks to be Completed by the Jurisdiction 

A. The County will create and coordinate the Edible Food Recovery program on behalf of the 
Jurisdiction, if the Jurisdiction performs each of the following actions:  

a) adopts and makes part of its municipal code an enforceable ordinance establishing an 
Edible Food Recovery program as required under the California Code of Regulations, 
Title 14, Division 7, Chapter 12 Short-Lived Climate Pollutants, including the specific 
provisions provided to the Jurisdiction by the County of San Mateo for edible food 
recovery definitions, requirements for Tier One and Tier Two Edible Food Generators, 
and requirements for Food Recovery Organizations and Food Recovery Services; and 

b) enters into this Memorandum of Understanding; and 
c) provides the County with a list and schedule of “large events” as defined by the 

California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Division 7, Chapter 12 Short-Lived Climate 
Pollutants occurring in the Jurisdiction; and 

Jack Johnson
I would like you to fill in the information here and get it back to us so that we can make a pdf and return it to you for your signature. After that, we will sign and return to you. It will become effective on 1.1.22.

Jack Johnson
Insert your official name

Jack Johnson
The County will pass our ordinance on 11.16.21. 

Jack Johnson
Insert your official name

Jack Johnson
Insert the official name of your council, etc.

Jack Johnson
Insert the date of your second reading of your 1383 ordinance. Or the date your jurisdiction adopts this MOU. It needs only to be signed by your town manger or equivalent, it doesn’t need to be approved by your council.

Jack Johnson
Insert your official name

Jack Johnson
Insert your official name

Jack Johnson
Insert your official name



2 
 

d) after consultation with the County, is responsible for coordinating the required edible 
food recovery regulations for those “large events” occurring in the Jurisdiction; and 

e) authorizes, by ordinance, the County to enforce California Code of Regulations, Title 14, 
Division 7, Chapter 12 Short-Lived Climate Pollutants in Section (a) above, and to 
incorporate such authorization to include, without limitation, the authority to inspect, 
investigate, hold hearings, issue citations, and/or assess administrative fines on behalf of 
the Jurisdiction as its Designee for Edible Food Recovery; and  

f) shall develop a method to accept written complaints, including anonymous complaints, 
regarding an entity that may be potentially non-compliant with the Edible Food Recovery 
requirements as required under the California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Division 7, 
Chapter 12 Short-Lived Climate Pollutants, and direct all such complaints to the County; 
and 

g) acknowledges, by ordinance, that, notwithstanding this Memorandum of Understanding, 
the Jurisdiction is, as stated in California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Division 7, 
Chapter 12 Short-Lived Climate Pollutants, ultimately responsible for compliance with 
the said Code. 

Note: Some County of San Mateo Jurisdictions are Member Agencies of the South 
Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA), a joint powers agency located within 
San Mateo County that provides solid waste and recyclables processing services for its 
Members; nothing in this MOU precludes the SBWMA from assisting its Member 
Agencies with the Tasks described in this MOU.  

2. Services to be Performed by the County 

A. The County shall create and coordinate an Edible Food Recovery Program compliant with 
California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Division 7, Chapter 12 Short-Lived Climate 
Pollutants on behalf of the Jurisdiction so long as this Memorandum of Understanding is in 
effect in its entirety. 
 

B. The County shall provide such services and activities for the Jurisdiction as described in 
Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.  
 

C. The County shall  offer only to provide services relating directly to the California Code of 
Regulations, Title 14, Division 7, Chapter 12 Short-Lived Climate Pollutants Edible Food 
Recovery regulations with the exception of a yearly analysis to be conducted by the County 
to estimate the amount of Green House Gas (GHG) emissions reduction to be attributed to 
edible food recovery activities in the Jurisdiction for use in their climate action plans. 
 

D. The County shall provide the Jurisdiction with the information and data necessary for the 
Jurisdiction to make their required reports to CalRecycle.  
 

Jack Johnson
Insert your official name

Jack Johnson
Insert official name

Jack Johnson
This is new.Jurisdictions are required to do this. From the model ordinance: Jurisdiction� shall receive written complaints from persons regarding an entity that may be potentially non-compliant with SB 1383 Regulations, including receipt of anonymous complaints. Guidance: Jurisdiction shall develop a method to accept anonymous complaints and require that all complaints be made in writing with specified information. See SB 1383 Regulations (14 CCR Section 18995.3) for more guidance.That’s for all complaints about 1383, not just Edible Food Recovery. We will be creating a form and a process on our website and will help the jurisdictions meet this requirement for EFR.

Jack Johnson
Insert official name

Jack Johnson
Insert official name

Jack Johnson
Insert official name

Jack Johnson
Insert official name

Jack Johnson
Insert official name

Jack Johnson
Insert official name



3 
 

E. The County will not be obligated to provide services if modifications are made to the 
ordinance by the Jurisdiction, which omits existing provisions and/or reduces the impact of 
the ordinance in any way. 

3. Consideration 

The benefit of this MOU to the Jurisdiction is that it alleviates the need for staff, cost analysis, 
capacity assessment, expenditures for infrastructure, labor, administration, and record keeping 
for the edible food recovery activities in their jurisdiction. 

The benefit of this MOU to both the County and the Jurisdiction is that this approach will create 
one uniform, standardized, and coordinated effort throughout the incorporated and 
unincorporated areas of San Mateo County.  

4. Relationship of Parties 

It is expressly understood that this is an agreement between two independent entities, the County 
and the Jurisdiction, and that no individual agency, employee, partnership, joint venture, or other 
relationship is established by this MOU. The intent by both the County and the Jurisdiction is to 
create an independent collaborative relationship. 

5. Hold Harmless  

A. Except as provided in subsection b. below, the [Jurisdiction] shall indemnify and save 
harmless the County and its officers, agents, employees, and servants from all claims, 
suits, or actions of every name, kind, and description resulting from this Memorandum of 
Understanding, brought for, or on account of, any of the following:   

a) Injuries to or death of any person, including the [Jurisdiction] or its 
employees/officers/agents;  

b) Damage to any property of any kind whatsoever and to whomsoever belonging; or 

c) Any other loss or cost, including but not limited to that caused by the concurrent 
active or passive negligence of the County and/or its officers, agents, employees, 
or servants. However, the [Jurisdiction]’s duty to indemnify and save harmless 
under this Section shall not apply to injuries or damage for which the County has 
been found in a court of competent jurisdiction to be solely liable by reason of its 
own negligence or willful misconduct. 

The duty of the [Jurisdiction] to indemnify and save harmless as set forth by this Section 
shall include the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code. 

B. With respect to coordinating, implementing, and/or enforcing the required edible food 
recovery regulations for those “Large Events” (as defined by the California Code of 
Regulations, Title 14, Division 7, Chapter 12) occurring in the [Jurisdiction] pursuant to 
section 1.A.d. above, 

Jack Johnson
Insert official name

Jack Johnson
Insert your official name

Jack Johnson
Insert your official name

Jack Johnson
Insert your official name

Jack Johnson
Insert your official name

Jack Johnson
Insert your official name

Jack Johnson
insert official name

Jack Johnson
insert official name.

Jack Johnson
insert official name

Jack Johnson
insert official name



4 
 

a) The County shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the [Jurisdiction] and its 
officers, agents, employees, and servants against all damages, claims, liabilities, 
losses, and other expenses, including without limitation attorneys’ fees and related 
costs, whether or not a lawsuit or other proceeding is filed, to the extent that they 
arise out of the negligence or willful misconduct of County staff arising out of 
coordinating, implementing, and/or enforcing the required edible food recovery 
regulations for those Large Events occurring in the [Jurisdiction]. 

b) The [Jurisdiction] shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the County and its 
officers, agents, employees, and servants against all damages, claims, liabilities, 
losses, and other expenses, including without limitation attorneys’ fees and related 
costs, whether or not a lawsuit or other proceeding is filed, to the extent they arise 
out of the negligence or willful misconduct of [Jurisdiction] staff arising out of 
coordinating, implementing, and/or enforcing the required edible food recovery 
regulations for those Large Events occurring in the [Jurisdiction]. 

C. A party seeking indemnity and defense under this section shall provide the indemnifying 
and defending party with prompt notice of any claim and give control of its defense and 
settlement to the indemnifying and defending party. The party seeking indemnity and 
defense shall also cooperate in all reasonable respects with the indemnifying and 
defending party, its insurance company, and its legal counsel in its defense of such claim. 
The obligation to defend and indemnify pursuant to this section shall not cover any claim 
in which there is a failure to give the indemnifying and defending party prompt notice, 
but only to the extent that such lack of notice prejudices the defense of the claim. The 
indemnifying and defending party may not settle any potential suit hereunder without the 
other party’s prior written approval, which will not to be unreasonably withheld, 
conditioned, or delayed. If a party who owes indemnity and defense under this section 
fails to promptly indemnify and defend a covered claim, the other party shall have the 
right to defend itself, and in such case, the party owning indemnity and defense shall 
promptly reimburse the other party for all of its associated costs and expenses. 

D. The obligations imposed by this section shall survive termination or expiration of the 
Memorandum of Understanding. 

6. Amendment of MOU and Merger Clause 

This MOU, including the Exhibit attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, 
constitutes the sole MOU of the parties hereto and correctly states the rights, duties, and 
obligations of each party as of this document's date. In the event that any term, condition, 
provision, requirement or specification set forth in this body of the MOU conflicts with or is 
inconsistent with any term, condition, provision, requirement, or specification in any exhibit 
and/or attachment to this MOU, the provisions of this body of the MOU shall prevail. Any prior 
MOU, promises, negotiations, or representations between the parties not expressly stated in this 
document are not binding. All subsequent modifications shall be in writing and will become 
effective when signed by both parties.   

Jack Johnson
insert official name

Jack Johnson
insert official name

Jack Johnson
insert official name

Jack Johnson
insert official name

Jack Johnson
insert official name



5 
 

7. Records 

The County shall maintain and preserve all records relating to this MOU in its possession and 
those of any third-party performing work related to this MOU for a period of five (5) years from 
the termination of this MOU. 

8. Assignability 

The County shall have the right to assign this MOU or any portion thereof to a third party or 
subcontract with a third party to perform any act required under this MOU without the prior 
written consent of the Jurisdiction.   

9. Notices 

Any written notice, request, demand, or other communication required or permitted hereunder 
shall be deemed to be properly given when deposited with the United States Postal Service, 
postage prepaid, or when transmitted by email communication, addressed: 

In the case of the County, to: 

Carolyn Bloede, Director 
County of San Mateo Office of Sustainability 
455 County Center, 4th Floor 
Redwood City, CA 94065  
Email: cbloede@smcgov.org 

In the case of the Jurisdiction, to: 

City Manager 
City of XXX 
XXX, CA  94XXX 
Email: XXX  
 

10. Controlling Law and Venue 

The validity of this MOU, the interpretation of its terms and conditions, and the performance of 
the parties hereto shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. Any action brought to 
enforce this action must be brought in the Superior Court of California in and for the County of 
San Mateo. 

11. Term and Termination 

Subject to compliance with the terms and conditions of the MOU, the term of this MOU shall 
commence on January 1, 2022 and shall automatically be renewed from year to year on the same 
terms and conditions. This MOU may be terminated without cause by the Jurisdiction or the 
County’s Director of Office of Sustainability or the Director’s designee at any time upon thirty 
(30) days written notice to the other party. 

  

Jack Johnson
insert your official name

Jack Johnson
fill in with appropriate information

Jack Johnson
insert your official name 



6 
 

12. Authority 

The parties warrant that the signatories to the MOU have the authority to bind their respective 
entities. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, by their duly authorized representatives, have 
affixed their hands. 

 

 

 

COUNTY OF SAN MATEO   CITY OF [Name] 

 
By:____________________________  By:____________________________ 
      Carolyn Bloede           [Name] 
      Director, Office of Sustainability         [Title], [Department] 
 

Date: __________________________  Date: __________________________ 

 

  



7 
 

EXHIBIT A - SCOPE OF ACTIVITIES 

The activity listed below relating to the County of San Mateo’s Edible Food Recovery Program 
will be conducted by the County and the Jurisdiction. 

I. Establishment 

1. The County will develop and coordinate a standardized and uniform San Mateo County-
wide Edible Food Recovery Program consistent with and compliant to California Code of 
Regulations, Title 14, Division 7, Chapter 12 Short-Lived Climate Pollutants. The 
program will operate within the Jurisdiction’s boundaries and replace the need for the 
Jurisdiction to create such a program on their own. This program will operate in the 
unincorporated areas of the county as well as all jurisdictions in the county agreeing to 
similar MOUs.  

II. Enforcement 

1. The County will conduct enforcement of the ordinance within the Jurisdiction using a 
complaint-based system consistent with the California Code of Regulations, Title 14, 
Division 7, Chapter 12 Short-Lived Climate Pollutants. The County will respond to 
complaints, investigate, and resolve reported issue(s). 

2. The County will follow enforcement provisions detailed in the ordinance and described in 
the California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Division 7, Chapter 12 Short-Lived Climate 
Pollutants. 

3. The County will keep detailed records of enforcement in the Jurisdiction for a minimum 
of five (5) years. 

4. The County will provide the necessary records to the Jurisdiction for the Jurisdiction’s 
required reporting about Edible Food Recovery work to CalRecycle. 

5. The County will notify the Jurisdiction promptly about any related issues that arise that 
require the Jurisdiction’s assistance or to request the Jurisdiction lead in resolving the 
issue(s) related to noncompliance. 

6. The Jurisdiction will work with the County on any related issues requiring jurisdictional 
assistance or lead in resolving the issue(s) related to complaints and/or noncompliance by 
any Tier 1 and Tier 2 Edible Food Generator or Food Recovery Organization and Service 
as defined in the California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Division 7, Chapter 12 Short-
Lived Climate Pollutants and operating within the Jurisdiction’s boundaries. 

 





- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM #6 



 

 

 

 

 



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

              AGENDA MEMORANDUM   

 
To: Board of Directors 

From: Delia Comito, Assistant General Manager 

Subject:   Report on Parks and Recreation Activities 
 

Date: November 18, 2021 

 
This is a monthly Agenda Item for parks and recreation related reports and/or comments.  
The following reports are expected at this meeting:  
 

 Directors Marsh and Suchomel will make recommendations for PAC 
appointments.  Memo attached. 

 
 PAC Chair Pat Tierney will report on the 11/03/21 PAC meeting. 

 
 



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Board of Directors 

From: Nancy Marsh, Eric Suchomel 

Subject: PAC Nominations 

Date: November 18, 2021  

 
Between July 28 and October 7, 2021, GCSD received three applications for a seat on the Parks 
Advisory Committee that became open when long time member Paul Koelsch resigned due to 
time constraints. 
 
Directors Marsh and Suchomel interviewed the three applicants via Zoom on October 27 and 28.  
Each of the applicants was qualified by virtue of living within the district and all three were 
viewed as being good candidates, with differing experience, interests and demographics. 
 
The following nominations are being presented for Board approval, in order of preference, which 
was driven by attention to ensuring that PAC membership is diverse, representing different 
interests and various segments of the community:  
 
Nominated as appointee:    Ethan Rayner 
Nominated as Alternates: Megan Gannaway 
    Thomas De Meo 
 
 



- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM #7 



 

 

 

 

 



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

              AGENDA MEMORANDUM   

 
To: Board of Directors 

From: Delia Comito, Assistant General Manager 

Subject:   Consideration of Resolution Establishing Fees for Processing Applications  
 

Date: November 18, 2021 

 
In April 2008, the District adopted a Fee Resolution with a list of fees the District charges 
to customers for various sewer permit related processes.  This Item is presented to 
propose two fee related changes and a name change to the list itself. 
 
Attached is the original Resolution adopted in 2008, and the proposed Resolution with 
the changes highlighted for your review. 
 
The new resolution adds an Inspection Only Fee of $100.  This is applicable in situations 
such as when an attached ADU is separately connected to a sewer main, or when a 
property owner replaces a sewer lateral.  In these cases, sewer capacity is not allotted and 
therefore no permit is issued and no fees are collected, but an inspection of the 
connection is required.  Staff has been charging $100 for these inspections without it 
listed. 
 
The new resolution also proposed to change the deposit amount collected when Class 3 
Mainline Extension permits are issued.  The $400 amount adopted in 2008 was a 
typographical error, as staff has historically collected $4,000.00 deposits on Class 3 
permits, which is an advance that is applied toward the cost of the District Engineer’s 
services.  As with all other costs, the cost of engineering has increased over the years, and 
staff feels that increasing the depot amount collected to $5,000 is reasonable.  The 
customer is always refunded any funds in excess of the actual engineering costs attributed 
to their project. 
 
The last change requested will rename the list of fees (attachment A) from “Fee 
Resolution” to “Fee Schedule”. 





GRANADA SANITARY DISTRICT  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2008-003 
 

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING FEES FOR PROCESSING APPLICATIONS FOR 
DISTRICT PERMITS OR OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE DETERMINATIONS AND 

PROVIDING DISTRICT DOCUMENTS  
  

The Board of Directors of the Granada Sanitary District resolves as follows: 
  

WHEREAS, the District has previously established fees for processing applications for District 
permits or other administrative determinations, services or document provision; and  
 
WHEREAS, for the convenience of the public, these fees have been placed in one document 
known as the District Fee Resolution, which is hereby amended and updated.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Granada 
Sanitary District that the fees listed on Exhibit A attached hereto have been duly established 
for processing applications for District permits or other administrative determinations, 
services or document provision. 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at the meeting of 
the Board of Directors of the Granada Sanitary District held on the 24th day of April, 2008, by the 
following vote;  
 

AYES: 
NOS: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

        
       Approved: 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Leonard Woren, President 
 
Counter Signed: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Ric Lohman, Secretary 



Exhibit “A” 

 

GRANADA SANITARY DISTRICT PROCESSING FEES 
 
APPLICATION FEE 
 
Class 1 Permits $150 
Class 2 Permits $250 
Class 3 Permits $250 
Hardship Waiver $150 
Variance Application $750 
Variance Reapplication $375 
Private Wastewater System Permit $150 
Reimbursement Agreement $250 
Hold Harmless Agreement $100 
Extension of Permit $150 
Garbage Collection Relief $150 
Copies of paper documents (after first four pages) $0.10 per page 
Copy of Meeting Tape $10 
 
 
With the exception of Class 1A permits (single family residences), in addition to payment of the 
application fees listed above, all applicants shall be responsible for and reimburse the District for all 
costs in excess of the permit application fees incurred or anticipated to be incurred by the District.  
The District may estimate the amount of the expenses which will be incurred, and that amount shall 
be deposited by the applicant when requested by the District in advance of issuance of the permit.  
For Class 3 permits and Private Wastewater System Permits, the minimum deposit (not including 
application fee) shall not be less than $500.  Reimbursable costs include costs for engineering, 
inspection, legal and other services necessary to process, review, evaluate and approve or 
disapprove the applicant's plans, specifications and other submittals, to monitor and inspect the 
construction and installation of the project as the work proceeds, and to test, sample and/or monitor 
wastewater discharge. 
 
Any unused portion of the deposit shall be refunded to the applicant upon final inspection and 
approval of the project for which the permit was obtained.  In the event no deposit has been required 
initially or if a deposit is deemed by the District to be insufficient to cover the District's anticipated 
future expenses, the applicant shall deposit the additional requested funds with fifteen days after 
written demand by the District.  The failure of an applicant to deposit the funds demanded or to 
make other arrangements acceptable to the District shall cause the applicant's permit to be 
suspended until either the deposit or other suitable arrangements acceptable to the District have been 
made, and no work may be conducted while the permit is suspended. 



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-___ 
 

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING FEES FOR PROCESSING APPLICATIONS FOR 
DISTRICT PERMITS OR OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE DETERMINATIONS AND 

PROVIDING DISTRICT DOCUMENTS  
  

The Board of Directors of the Granada Community Services District resolves as follows: 
  

WHEREAS, the District has previously established fees for processing applications for District 
permits or other administrative determinations, services or document provision; and  
 
WHEREAS, for the convenience of the public, these fees have been placed in one document 
previously known as the District Fee Resolution, which is hereby amended and updated.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Granada 
Community Services District that the fees listed on Exhibit A, the Granada Community 
Services Fee Schedule attached hereto, have been duly established for processing 
applications for District permits or other administrative determinations, services or 
document provision. 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at the meeting of 
the Board of Directors of the Granada Community Services District held on the 18th day of 
November, 2021, by the following vote;  
 

AYES: 
NOS: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

        
      
       Approved: 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Matthew Clark, Board President 
 
 
Countersigned: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Delia Comito, District Secretary 
 



Exhibit “A” 

 

   
GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT FEE SCHEDULE 

 
APPLICATION FEE 
 
Class 1 Permits $150 
Class 2 Permits $250 
Class 3 Permits $250 
Inspection Only Fee (when a permit is not needed)                       $100 
Hardship Waiver $150 
Variance Application $750 
Variance Reapplication $375 
Private Wastewater System Permit $150 
Reimbursement Agreement $250 
Hold Harmless Agreement $100 
Extension of Permit $150 
Garbage Collection Relief $150 
Copies of paper documents (after first four pages) $0.10 per page 
Copy of Meeting Tape $10 
 
With the exception of Class 1A permits (single family residences), in addition to payment of the 
application fees listed above, all applicants shall be responsible for and reimburse the District for all 
costs in excess of the permit application fees incurred or anticipated to be incurred by the District.  
The District may estimate the amount of the expenses which will be incurred, and that amount shall 
be deposited by the applicant when requested by the District in advance of issuance of the permit.  
For Class 3 permits and Private Wastewater System Permits, the minimum deposit (not including 
application fee) shall not be less than $5,000.  Reimbursable costs include costs for engineering, 
inspection, legal and other services necessary to process, review, evaluate and approve or 
disapprove the applicant's plans, specifications and other submittals, to monitor and inspect the 
construction and installation of the project as the work proceeds, and to test, sample and/or monitor 
wastewater discharge. 
 
Any unused portion of the deposit shall be refunded to the applicant upon final inspection and 
approval of the project for which the permit was obtained.  In the event no deposit has been required 
initially or if a deposit is deemed by the District to be insufficient to cover the District's anticipated 
future expenses, the applicant shall deposit the additional requested funds with fifteen days after 
written demand by the District.  The failure of an applicant to deposit the funds demanded or to 
make other arrangements acceptable to the District shall cause the applicant's permit to be 
suspended until either the deposit or other suitable arrangements acceptable to the District have been 
made, and no work may be conducted while the permit is suspended. 



- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM #8 



 

 

 

 

 



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

              AGENDA MEMORANDUM   

 
To: Board of Directors 

From: Delia Comito, Assistant General Manager 

Subject:   Consideration of Support for the Potential Adoption of San Mateo County  
                Supervisorial District Boundaries 
 

Date: November 18, 2021 

 
This Item was placed on the Agenda at the request of President Clark. 





- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM #9 



 

 

 

 

 



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM  
 
To: Board of Directors 

From: Directors Dye, Clark, and Chuck Duffy, General Manager 

Subject: SAM Treatment Plant Process Issues and Non-Domestic Source Control Program 

Date: November 18, 2021 

 
SAM’s Wastewater Treatment Plant has had process issues at various times over the course of 
the past year, resulting in effluent concentrations which have exceeded the plant’s operating 
permit. SAM staff worked very hard, putting in long hours over many months to manage the 
process issues. This item is included in the agenda to  discuss options to address influent source 
control. 
 
The following couple of paragraphs are a partial chronology of events as written by SAM 
General Manager Kishen Prathivadi for a Background and Discussion/Report presented at the 
October 25th meeting. 
 

“Background and Discussion/Report 
In early 2021, SAM performed a source control sampling survey and determined that 
there are several general locations where the organic strength of the wastewater 
significantly exceeded SAM’s Maximum Allowable Concentrations Limits (MACLs). In 
1994 SAM adopted Resolution 2-94 to implement a Non-Domestic Wastewater Source 
Control Program (NDWSCP) to allow SAM a greater role in controlling non-domestic 
and industrial wastes to enter the WWTP and cause upset. 
 
SAM’s NDWSCP Regulations are applicable to all non-domestic dischargers (as defined 
in 2-94), either by SAM, the Member Agencies, or a combination thereof, within the 
Member Agency service areas. However, it appears that the issuance of permits and 
program enforcement was halted in 2014. Since that time, permits previously issued to 
non-domestic discharges have lapsed while new potential non-domestic sources, with the 
potential to discharge high concentrations of BOD and other pollutants, have been 
approved by the County to operate and connect to the sanitary sewers discharging to 
SAM’s WWTP without being evaluated or permitted by SAM or the Member Agencies. 
Given the recent violations, and the need to ensure that sources outside of the WWTP are 
not causing or contributing to upset/interference with treatment processes within the 
WWTP going forward, SAM staff believes that it is essential that the NDWSCP program 
be reintroduced and prudently implemented with permits issued to businesses determined 
to be non-domestic dischargers per Resolution 2-94”



 
From our GCSD perspective, there is continuing agreement that the NDWSCP permit system 
needs to be put in place again. The issue now is how to implement it. SAM proposed, and the 
Board approved on September 23rd, that the program would be run by SAM and would involve 
testing the first 10 businesses SAM had identified as possible problematic dischargers. There was 
quite a lot of discussion about using a consultant specializing in breweries to assist with 
permitting, and in fact that consultant had already been hired by the SAM GM and asked to focus 
first on the breweries. The other businesses  added were greenhouses, the Harbor District, and 
the fertilizer warehouse.   
 
The breweries within GCSD - Half Moon Bay Brewing, Hop Dogma, and Blue Ocean Brewery 
(which has not yet begun operations), plus the JettyWave Distillery - were told they needed to 
complete applications and pay to test their discharge. Equipment would be installed within their 
business at their cost to measure the Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD) in their effluent. These 
tests were estimated to cost $1,000, and could be required on an ongoing basis, with no 
limitation spelled out in the agreement permit. 
 
One factor that can be taken into account in deciding who would need a permit is the amount of 
flow into the wastewater system. The breweries and distillery in GCSD are extremely small, and 
their equipment has limits on how much water the business can process daily. For each brewery 
it amounts to less than 100 gallons per day, and much of that water is used in the beer or spirits. 
All these businesses are run by environmentalists who want to do the right thing and are happy to 
cooperate with reasonable oversight. Testing would possibly show that their wastewater does 
have high BOD content at times, but we would need to account for the very low flow they 
produce. BOD’s impact at the SAM treatment plant is a product of 1) the BOD concentration of 
the flow into the system and 2) the amount of flow. 
 
At the October 25th meeting the SAM GM proposed an additional $90,000 contract with a 
consultant who specializes in breweries. The Board questioned whether this was the correct 
approach, and two member agencies (HMB and GCSD) were not ready to move forward with the 
permit program as formulated and wanted to reconsider how it was structured. A motion was 
approved by the SAM board asking that “the member agencies and SAM put together the 
consolidated program and bring it back within a reasonable amount of time.”  
 
As a result of this direction by the SAM board, SAM and the member agency managers held a 
meeting which resulted in an informal agreement that Half Moon Bay and Granada Community 
Services District would prefer to handle the actual interface with their customers and businesses 
in our respective districts, while of course coordinating the non-domestic program parameters 
with SAM. Chair Dye met with the SAM GM to discuss the possibility of an education program 
with a legal agreement to adopt best practices as an alternative to testing. She wrote the 
following summary of the proposed option. 
 

Proposal for SAM- Member Agency NDWSCP 
 
Here is how the collaborative SAM-Member Agency NDWSCP program could work 
under the current concept. Ideally, the plan would be set up and implemented by a 
consultant selected by the Member Agencies and developed in coordination with SAM. 
This is just an outline of the concept. It would require a more detailed explanation of how 
it would happen. 
 
1. The MA’s and SAM would create a package for all non-domestic businesses including 
the following: 



a. An application form that would include points (i)-(xiv) [except item 7] 
included in the ordinance. 
b. A document describing best practices for specific industries (starting with 
breweries/distilleries, plant nurseries and fertilizer warehouses, and 
restaurants). Those for restaurants would cover the FOG program. 
c. A legal document to be signed by the applicant affirming that he or she 
understood the requirements and agreed to comply. This would include: 

i. Adopting the best practices for their specific industry. 
ii. Notifying the agency or SAM of potential problem discharges, changes 
in output, or significant increases in the amount of wastewater discharged 
iii. Other requirements to be determined. Some of these requirement could 
be developed in consultation with the business, since many are more than 
willing to cooperate. 
iv. A provision that further measures could be taken if warranted. 

 
2. The MA’s would identify all non-domestic dischargers, each one using its 
current list based on water use and working with the County to identify additional 
new or changed businesses that should be on the list.  
 
3. The MA’s would review the list and determine which ones would need a 
permit. This could involve phone calls or meetings to find out if business were 
still operating or if there were major changes to the activities undertaken by the 
businesses.  
 
4. The application package would be provided to all businesses. They would 
return the forms with the standard fee, and the signed agreement to comply with 
the requirements.  
 
5. The MA’s would review any problem businesses that the consultant had 
identified and collaborate with SAM and follow up as needed.  

 
At the November 8th meeting the SAM GM called for the Board to return to its September vote 
to have SAM run the permit program as previously described, with a testing program to begin 
with the breweries. Montara supported the SAM concept. The concept proposed by the GCSD 
representative (Director Dye) was dismissed because there had been insufficient time to review 
it, even though it was included in the agenda packet. 
 
Tonight’s GCSD meeting is an opportunity for the Board to review this concept and take a 
position on it.  
 

• Does the Board agree that GCSD should be the interface with non-domestic source 
businesses in our district, rather SAM? 

 
• Does the Board support developing (with consultant costs) an education program and 

legal requirements regarding wastewater management for dischargers?  
 





- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM #10 



 

 

 

 

 



  
SEWER AUTHORITY MID-COASTSIDE 

Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 
Regular Board Meeting 7:00 PM, Monday, October 25, 2021 

SAM Administration Building, 1000 N. Cabrillo Highway, Half Moon Bay, CA 94019 

 

Computer Audio: Please click the link below to join the Zoom webinar: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87366076302?pwd=S2l0YTdxYTArLzlnU0l3S2srNXgzUT09 

Meeting ID: 873 6607 6302 
Passcode: 840873 

One tap mobile 
+16699006833,,87366076302#,,,,*840873# US (San Jose) 

 

If you have a disability and require special assistance related to participating in this 

teleconference meeting, please contact the Authority at least two working days in advance of 

the meeting at (650) 726-0124 or via email at kishen@samcleanswater.org. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 

      A. Roll Call: Chair: Barbara Dye (GCSD)  

Vice-Chair: Deborah Ruddock (HMB) 

Secretary/Treasurer: Kathryn Slater-Carter (MWSD) 

Director: Dr. Deborah Penrose (HMB)  

Director: Ric Lohman (MWSD)  

                                           Director:                        Matthew Clark (GCSD) 

 

      B.  Continuation of Virtual/Teleconference Meetings per Assembly Bill (AB) 361 

           And Adopt Resolution 5-2021 Finding and Determining that: 

          (1) a state of emergencyrelated to COVID-19 is currently in effect; (2) state and local 

               officials have recommended measures to promote social distancing in connection 

               with COVID-19; and (3) due to the COVID-19 emergency, meeting in person would 

Due to the continuing state of emergency declared by the Governor related to preventing the 
spread of COVID-19, and pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e), Sewer Authority Mid-
Coastside (SAM) will be holding this Board meeting by Zoom Webinar; access to this meeting 
will be available to the Board and the public by either computer web-link or telephone audio as 
noted above. 

1



          present imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees; and authorizing continued  

          remote meetings for the period October 25 through November 24, 2021 per Government 

          Code Section 54953(e) (Attachment)  

C. October Employee Anniversary 
Anniversaries  1. Jose Ahumada, Collections Maintenance Worker- 2 years

2. PUBLIC COMMENT / ORAL COMMUNICATION

Members of the public are welcome to submit comments via e-mail by sending them to
kishen@samcleanswater.org.  All comments so submitted prior to 7 pm on October 25,

2021 will be read out loud during the discussion of the respective item(s) identified in the

e-mail; comments without such identification shall be read during this Item. Members of the

public may also provide comments telephonically or electronically on individual items

following recognition by the Board Chair presiding over the meeting.

3. CONSENT AGENDA (Consent items are considered routine and will be approved/

adopted by a single motion and vote unless a request for removal for discussion or
explanation is received from the public or Board.)

A. Approve Minutes of September 23, Special Board Meeting, and September 27, 2021
          Regular Board Meeting (Attachment) 
      B. Approve Disbursements for October 25, 2021 (Attachment) 
      C. Monthly Revenue and Expense Report for Period Ending September 30, 2021    
          (Attachment) 

4. REGULAR BUSINESS (The Board will discuss, seek public input, and possibly take
action on the following items)
A. Authorize General Manager to Sign the Memorandum of Understanding by and 

Between San Mateo Resource Conservation District, San Francisco Public Utilities 

Commission, Coastside County Water District, Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside and 

the Couthy of San Mateo for Funding the Continued Operation of the Pilarcitos Creek 

at Half Moon Bay Gauging Station (Attachment) 

B. Authorize General Manager to Enter into a Contract with TAS Consulting for Non 

Domestic Wastewater Source Control Permitting Not to Exceed $90,000. 

(Attachment) 

C. Authorize General Manager to Enter Into a Contract with Peninsula Pump for 

Relocating the Pump for Rotary Drum Thickener from Upstairs to Basement of MB2 

Building Not to Exceed $60,000.(Attachment) 

5. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

A. Monthly Manager’s Report - September 2021

2



6.    ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
                         

7.   DIRECTORS’ REPORT  
 

8.   TOPICS FOR FUTURE BOARD CONSIDERATION (Attachment) 
 

9.   CONVENE IN CLOSED SESSION (Items discussed in Closed Session comply with the  
      Ralph M. Brown Act.) 

       
      A.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL- EXISTING LITIGATION 

 Pursuant to Government Code Paragraph (2) of Subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 
 (FEHA Claim 202008-10882405 filed by Beverli Marshall)   

      B.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
            Pursuant to Government Code Paragraph (1) of Subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9: 
            (Half Moon Bay v. Granada CSD, Montara WSD & Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside) 
      C.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL –SIGNIFICANT RISK OF LITIGATION (1 
            CASE) Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (2)  
      D.  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (§ 54957) Title: General 
            Manager       

10.   CONVENE IN OPEN SESSION (Report Out on Closed Session Items) 

11. ADJOURNMENT 

 Upcoming Regular Board Meetings: October 25, 2021 and November 15, 2021 
 

The meeting will end by 9:00 p.m. unless extended by Board vote. 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC 
 

This agenda contains a brief description of each item to be considered. Those wishing to 

address the Board on any matter not listed on the Agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the 

Board, may do so during the Public Comment section of the Agenda and will have a maximum 

of three minutes to discuss their item. The Board Chair will call forward those wishing to speak 

on a matter listed on the Agenda at the appropriate time. 
 

Any writing that is a public record and relates to an agenda item for an open session of a 

regular meeting that is distributed to the Board less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, is 

available for public inspection, during normal business hours, at the Authority’s office. 
 

Board meetings are accessible to people with disabilities. Upon request, the Authority will 

make this agenda available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability. In 

compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Authority will provide special 

assistance for participation in this meeting. Please submit requests for a disability-related 

modification or an accommodation in order to participate in the public meeting at least two 

working days in advance of the meeting by contacting the Authority at (650) 726-0124. 

3



October 25, 2021 
Agenda Item No: 5 

Page 1 
 

 

BOARD MEMBERS: M. Clark B. Dye R. Lohman 
 D. Penrose D. Ruddock K. Slater-Carter 
ALTERNATE MEMBERS: S. Boyd E. Suchomel                               P. Dekker 
 J. Harvey H. Rarback                                  

 

 
 

 

 

SEWER AUTHORITY MID-COASTSIDE 
 

Staff Report 

 

TO: Honorable Board of Directors 
 

THROUGH: Kishen Prathivadi, General Manager 
 

FROM: Tim Costello, Supervisor of Technical / Field Services 
  

SUBJECT: Monthly Manager’s Report – September 2021 
 

 

Executive Summary 

The purpose of this report is to keep the Board and public informed of SAM’s day-to-day 

operations. 
 

Fiscal Impact 

There is no fiscal impact from this report. 
 

Strategic Plan Compliance 

The recommendation complies with the SAM Strategic Plan Goal 5.5: “Operations and 

maintenance should be proactively planned, and the Board shall be kept up to date on 

progress on operations and maintenance issues.” 
 

Background and Discussion/Report 

The following data is presented for the month of September 2021. 
 

Key Indicators of Performance Flow Report (See Attachment A) 

NPDES Permit Violations:  0 Half Moon Bay 0.715     61.68% 

Accidents, Injuries, etc.: 0 Granada CSD 0.232     20.05% 

Reportable Spills Cat 1: 0 Montara W&SD 0.212 18.27% 

Reportable Spills Cat 2: 0 Total 1.296 100% 

Reportable Spills Cat 3: 0 
 

95



October 25, 2021 
Agenda Item No: 5 

Page 2 
 

 

BOARD MEMBERS: M. Clark B. Dye R. Lohman 
 D. Penrose D. Ruddock K. Slater-Carter 
ALTERNATE MEMBERS: S. Boyd E. Suchomel                               P. Dekker 
 J. Harvey H. Rarback                                  

Administration 

There were two Regular Board Meetings, one Special Board Meeting, and no public 
records requests in the month of September 2021.  There were no articles in the Half 
Moon Bay Review, and there has been no lost time work accidents since September 10, 
2019. There were no new hires, and two anniversaries in the month of September. 
Gabriel Aguilar, Lead Operator, 20 years, and Sonya Ondish, Operator Grade II, 5 
years.  
 

Operations & Maintenance 
 

The following permanent flow storage installations are in place and functioning properly. 
 

Montara Pump Station – Walker Tank, which has a capacity of 434,000 gallons. 
 

The Portola Station – Wet Weather Facility, which has a capacity of 400,000 gallons.  
 

The Portola Pump Station has the ability to use the Wet Weather Facility as a modified 

equalization basin if needed, (without mixing it is not ideal for this use). It is better suited 

as a wet weather flow storage as originally designed.  
 

Much like last month, while the effluent numbers in September look better it was 

certainly not without effort and continued chemical addition to make it happen. 
 

We continue to add both alum and poly to the MLSS basin effluent in an effort to keep 

solids and blankets in the system. Our ferric source is limited at best as it is with the rest 

of facilities in the area, what we can find is in high demand and we are suffering from 

supply and demand pricing. So far we have not seen any adverse with the alum / poly 

com we have going so we will continue with that. Hopefully the supply chain opens up a 

little more for our normal chemicals but I am not going to bank on anything at this point. 
 

The flow splitting to the secondaries is working for to keep things in check. This allows 

us to treat while allowing the blanket to settle, the long detention time in the secondary’s 

is one down side we have to stay on top of and try to minimize rising sludge in the 

clarifier.   
 

Since the numbers are looking better I reduced the number of samples going out in 

September, it will still be slightly accelerated version of our NPDES requirement but it 

won’t be daily. This should give us a little more information and assist with tracking 

anomalies that might occur and or effect the process. You can see in the NPDES report 

some of the influent #’s are above what the recent evaluation said we should be at. 
 

96



October 25, 2021 
Agenda Item No: 5 

Page 3 
 

 

BOARD MEMBERS: M. Clark B. Dye R. Lohman 
 D. Penrose D. Ruddock K. Slater-Carter 
ALTERNATE MEMBERS: S. Boyd E. Suchomel                               P. Dekker 
 J. Harvey H. Rarback                                  

The staff has been spraying chlorine solution to the surface of the MLSS basin to help 

with the foaming issues. You might ask, “What is the purpose of this?” The thing about 

foam issues is you need to figure out a way to combat them. Since this type of nocardia 

is hydrophobic, one good way to deal with it is to spray it with chlorine solution while it is 

on the surface. If you can get it into solution you have a good chance to waste it out but 

you have to make that happen in some form or fashion. Hence our two pronged 

approach of the polymer and surface spray combo. I could go on, but I figure I might 

lose some of you so I’ll just leave it at that. 
 

We did get into the W.A.S. flow meter issues, the short version is that the existing flow 

tubes got all buggered up. It looks like the lining was failing and blocking all flow. In the 

short term we cut the lining out of the tubes since they were completely blocked. New 

flow tubes were ordered and will be installed once they arrive.  
 

Work on the water system continues but we expect that to be wrapped up be next 

month.  
 

Du-all safety was in and performed a 7+ hour confined space class for about half the 

staff. I was happy to get this taken care of as in person trainings have been hard to 

schedule with the Covid and all. 
 

We had a digester gas blower fail. A couple years ago one failed and I had to make an 

emergency run to southern California to get a rebuilt one. We were more prepared this 

time and had a swing unit in storage so I will be send this one out to Vaughn industrial 

repair for evaluation and possible rebuild.  
 

The county came in to do a Hazardous Materials Program Inspection of our pump 

station facilities. There were no significant findings, we were able to answer any 

questions that came up he left feeling comfortable and we have since received the 

inspection records.   
  

I have been openly communicating with Mr. Burrell at the state to be sure he is kept in 

the loop of what we have going on and our process. 
 

In regards to exceedances this month I have none to report.  
 

During the month of September 2021, rainfall was below normal for Half Moon Bay. The 

10-year average for the area is 0.233 inches of rain in September, this web link has 

some very useful data for our area, https://ggweather.com/hmb/ . We did get some 

rainfall to report for the month of September, but again, it was low. Rainfall totals were 

97



October 25, 2021 
Agenda Item No: 5 

Page 4 
 

 

BOARD MEMBERS: M. Clark B. Dye R. Lohman 
 D. Penrose D. Ruddock K. Slater-Carter 
ALTERNATE MEMBERS: S. Boyd E. Suchomel                               P. Dekker 
 J. Harvey H. Rarback                                  

as follows: 0.18, (from the NOAA gauge), inches at the treatment plant, 0.14 inches in 

the GCSD service are, and 0.26 inches at the MWSD weather station. Below the 10 

year average still with the exception of Montara. 0.35 would be considered normal for 

this time of year .There were micro-climate variations verified by the data. 
 

Below is a chronological summary of some of the occurrences during the month of 

September 2021. 
 

9/1/2021 –    Alum & poly to MLSS eff, added poly to MLSS inf to help with foam, 
cleaned DO probe, Cl2 to RAS at 25 lbs per day. 

 

9/2/2021 –    Alum & poly to MLSS eff, mix up chemicals for micro 2000, more CL2 
surface spray for foam in MLSS basin, put secondary #1 back in service 
approx. 25% of flow to #1 and 75% to #2 due to surface sludge issue in 
the clarifier. Met with county inspector at all three of the SAM pump 
stations, went well with no findings to report an e-mail copy of the 
inspection report should be coming in the next week or two. 

 

9/3/2021 – Alum and Poly added  to MLSS eff, poly also added to MLSS inf to help 
with the foam, Calcon was in to see what’s going on with the WAS flow 
meter that is acting up.    Recirculation pump on digester suffered a 
broken belt, staff was able to get it replaced but it also necessitated 
cleaning and back flushing the heat exchanger. 

 

9/4/2021 – Alum and Poly added to MLSS eff, poly was added to the MLSS inf for 
foam control 

 

9/5/2021 – Alum and Poly added to MLSS eff, again poly added to the MLSS inf for 
foam control, WAS flow meter acting up again. 

 

9/6/2021 – Alum and Poly added  to MLSS eff, chlorine solution was sprayed directly 
to foam in MLSS basin to break it down, direct application of chlorine to 
this type of filament is supposed to help, W.A.S. flow meter still acting up  

 

9/7/2021 – Alum and Poly added  to MLSS eff, Calcon in working on the W.A.S. flow 
meter issues, we have the meters on site but we need to order a couple 
replacement spools as the overall length is a few inches different, covid 
samples sent out today. 

 

9/8/2021 – Alum and Poly added  to MLSS eff, sprayed chlorine solution on the foam, 
added poly to MLSS inf for foaming issue, Calcon working on the #1/#2 
water system and electrical work at the Princeton pump station. 

 

9/9/2021 – Alum and Poly added to MLSS eff, poly to MLSS inf for foam control, 
Calcon working on the #1 / #2 water system, covid samples sent out. 

 

9/10/2021 – Alum and poly to MLSS eff to help with settling, poly to MLSS inf for foam, 
work with folks from CSRMA on S.O.P.’s for some equipment, Calcon in 
working on #1 & #2 water system also working on conduit for airline meter, 

98



October 25, 2021 
Agenda Item No: 5 

Page 5 
 

 

BOARD MEMBERS: M. Clark B. Dye R. Lohman 
 D. Penrose D. Ruddock K. Slater-Carter 
ALTERNATE MEMBERS: S. Boyd E. Suchomel                               P. Dekker 
 J. Harvey H. Rarback                                  

drive switch on FBP was tripping we were able to correct it in the short 
term. 

 

9/11/2021 – Saturday – Alum and Poly to MLSS eff, poly to MLSS inf also for foam. 
 

9/12/2021 – Sunday – Alum and poly to MLSS inf, poly to MLSS for foam, spray cl2 
solution to surface for foam control. 

 

9/13/2021 – Alum and Poly to MLSS eff, poly to MLSS inf also for foam, cleaned ferric 
filters, Calcon working on 1 & 2 water system. 

 

9/14/2021 – Alum and Poly to MLSS eff, poly to MLSS inf also for foam, surface spray 
cl2 solution on AB 3 for foam, digester gas blower failed today, motor 
megged bad, need to replace. Calcon working on 1 & 2 water and Plant 
PLC, Vapex is at Princeton setting up a trial run at that location, call in to 
state as per their request. 

 

9/15/2021 – Alum and Poly to MLSS eff, poly to MLSS inf also for foam, swapped out 
gas blower today and got it wired up while Calcon was here, need to send 
in for repair, Calcon also working on water system and conduit. 

 

9/16/2021 – Alum and Poly to MLSS eff, poly to MLSS inf also for foam, Calcon 
working on water system and doing in plant meter calibrations for various 
equipment, Du-all safety was in today doing a confined space class, been 
a while since we were able to do a in person class, still need to follow 
covid protocols and class is limited on size. 

 

9/17/2021 – Alum and Poly to MLSS eff, Poly to MLSS Inf for foam, break up foam in 
the channels, more foam noticeable today 

 

9/18/2021 – Sat - Alum and Poly to MLSS eff, Poly to MLSS Inf for foam, apply cl2 
solution to surface foam in AB #3 

 

9/19/2021 – Sun - Alum and Poly to MLSS eff, Poly to MLSS Inf for foam, foam 
appears to be thick and dark today, more cl2 solution sprayed onto foam 

 

9/20/2021 – Alum and Poly to MLSS eff, Poly to MLSS Inf for foam, Calcon in working 
on #2 water system and doing calibrations, cl2 solution spray to foam, 
sample out to aquafix 

 

9/21/2021 – Alum and Poly to MLSS eff, Poly to MLSS Inf for foam, Calcon in working 
on #2 water system and doing calibrations, cl2 solution spray to foam 

 

9/22/2021 – Alum and Poly to MLSS eff, Poly to MLSS Inf for foam, cl2 solution 
sprayed to foam, shed set up in back 

 

9/23/2021 – Alum and Poly to MLSS eff, Poly to MLSS Inf for foam, Calcon working on 
water system and cal’s (found a buildup in water pump after only one 
month in use), met Cal trans in Moss Beach to discuss force main 
location. 

99



October 25, 2021 
Agenda Item No: 5 

Page 6 
 

 

BOARD MEMBERS: M. Clark B. Dye R. Lohman 
 D. Penrose D. Ruddock K. Slater-Carter 
ALTERNATE MEMBERS: S. Boyd E. Suchomel                               P. Dekker 
 J. Harvey H. Rarback                                  

9/24/2021 – Alum and Poly to MLSS eff, Poly to MLSS Inf for foam, Calcon working on 
calibrations, cleaned up ferric filter, applied chlorination solution to AB#3 
surface for foam (nocardia). 

 

9/25/2021 – Sat - Alum and Poly to MLSS eff, Poly to MLSS Inf for foam, apply cl2 
solution to surface foam in AB #3 (nocardia), initial thought was it was a 
bad solenoid, later investigation found issue to be bad transducer got 
system set up for overnight. Calcon will be in tomorrow to replace 
transducer. 

 

9/26/2021 – Sun - Alum and Poly to MLSS eff, Poly to MLSS Inf for foam, more cl2 
solution sprayed onto foam (nocardia), Calcon came in and replaced 
transducer on water tank, all okay now. Hypo pump #3 showing ground 
fault – Calcon notified  

 

9/27/2021 – Alum and Poly to MLSS eff, Poly to MLSS Inf for foam, cl2 solution to 
foam spray (nocardia), call Calcon about an alarm glitch on ignition, they 
will send tech tomorrow. 

 

9/28/2021 – Alum and Poly to MLSS eff, Poly to MLSS Inf for foam, cl2 solution spray 
to foam (nocardia), Calcon tech working on ignition system. 

 

8/29/2021 – Alum and Poly to MLSS eff, Poly to MLSS Inf for foam, cl2 solution 
sprayed to foam (nocardia), work on getting Chronic, Acute, and species 
screening testing set up.  

 

9/30/2021 – Alum and Poly to MLSS eff, Poly to MLSS Inf for foam, cl2 solution 
sprayed to foam (nocardia), less poly was required for the foam which was 
a good thing perhaps, plant generator test today (routine test). Contacted 
Calcon again about the hypo pump issue, we do have two others so that’s 
good.   

 

 

Other activities are listed below; 
 

There were 14 deliveries (approximately 10,000 gallons) of trucked waste discharged at 

the SAM Plant for a total revenue of $ 1000.00. There were no leachate deliveries to the 

SAM IPS line in the month of September 2021, for a total leachate volume of 0 gallons. 
 

The NPDES data report for September 2021 is attached reference (Attachment B).  
 

Contract Collection Services 

  

The SAM crew cleaned 27,512 feet of sewer line and responded to eighteen service 

calls in contract service areas. Nine were sewer line related and nine were maintenance 

service calls. Six of the callouts were during regular business hours, and twelve were 

100



October 25, 2021 
Agenda Item No: 5 

Page 7 
 

 

BOARD MEMBERS: M. Clark B. Dye R. Lohman 
 D. Penrose D. Ruddock K. Slater-Carter 
ALTERNATE MEMBERS: S. Boyd E. Suchomel                               P. Dekker 
 J. Harvey H. Rarback                                  

after hour calls. Eight calls were in HMB, three calls were in the GCSD service area, 

and seven calls were in the MWSD service area. 
 

HMB  –  The service calls in HMB were as follows; 9/4 - Caller reported toilet backing 

up at Oak Street Park, crew arrived found that toilet flush valve was sticking 

on causing water to overfill bowl. HMB public works crew was notified of 

problem prior to crew leaving the area. 9/6 - Call for upstairs bathroom 

backing up. Crew arrived, checked main and it was flowing, flushed the line 

to be sure there was nothing obstructing, line was clear. Resident was 

advised to contact a rooter company as blockage was a private matter. 9/7 - 

Sensor issue with Smart Cover where a temporary flow meter was installed. 

Sensor was moved had to be realigned to proper position. 9/13 - Call for 

bathtub not draining. Crew arrived and flushed main, main line was clear. 

Resident was advised to contact a plumber to resolve issue. 
 

  The maintenance calls in HMB were as follows; 9/13 - Crew responded to 

station alarm finding electrical contractor doing work at station. 9/26 - Power 

outage at the Ocean Colony Station, contacted PG&E, they said power 

would be restored by 9/28, wow.. Power was restored by 00:18 on 9/27. 

reset alarms and checked station for normal operation. 9/26 - Power outage 

at Pelican Point Lift Station. Same as Ocean Colony power restore by 

PG&E expected by 9/28. Power restored by 00:18 on 9/27. Generator had 

run for 4.2 hours. Reset alarms, checked for normal operation. 9/30 - 

Pelican point lift station power fail alarm. Found screen interface blank, was 

able to cycle power to get screen to reset. Reset alarms and checked 

station for normal operation. 
 

GCSD –  The service calls in the GCSD area were as follows; 9/6 – Call for a house 

back up. Crew arrived and found no standing water in clean out, this house 

is at the end of the main line, the only flow is from this residence. Crew 

flushed the main line and it was clear. Advised resident to contact plumber 

to help resolve. 9/24 - Resident called for a backup. Crew arrived finding 

there was standing water in the cleanout. Crew assisted resident to clear 

blockage. Crew advised resident to contact a plumber to have service line 

checked, it was noted that service line feeds directly into manhole. 9/29 - 

Crew responded to call for a backup. Crew arrived and flushed main finding 

no obstruction. Crew was able to assist homeowner at property line clean 

101



October 25, 2021 
Agenda Item No: 5 

Page 8 
 

 

BOARD MEMBERS: M. Clark B. Dye R. Lohman 
 D. Penrose D. Ruddock K. Slater-Carter 
ALTERNATE MEMBERS: S. Boyd E. Suchomel                               P. Dekker 
 J. Harvey H. Rarback                                  

out to clear blockage. Owner was advised to contact a plumber to have 

service line checked.  
 

  There were no maintenance calls in the GCSD area during the month of 

September. 
 

MWSD –  The two service calls in the MWSD area were as follows; 9/7 - Call for a 

service line back up. Crew arrived and noticed standing water in the 

cleanout. Crew flushed main line finding no blockage, advised resident to 

contact a rooter company to resolve issue. 9/13 - Call by a resident in the 

MWSD area for standing water / possible sewage. Crew arrived, no sign of 

sewage spill just standing water near property, main line was clear, possible 

runoff from nearby property.  
 

  The seven maintenance service calls in the MWSD area this month were as 

follows; 9/2 - Call for grinder pump not working. Crew arrived finding breaker 

to grinder pump was off. Turned on breaker and grinder pump came on. 

9/20 – Seal cove #4 alarm, station was operating normal upon arrival. Reset 

alarm and checked station for normal operation. 9/20 – Seal cove #3 alarm 

response, station was operating normally upon arrival. Reset alarms and 

checked station for normal operation. 9/24 – California lift station alarm due 

to power glitch. Genny ran for a short time 189:46 to 189:51. Cleared all 

alarms and checked station for normal operation. 9/24 (27th) - Grinder pump 

issue, pump had shorted out do to water in grinder vault. Vactored out vault 

and checked until new pump could be installed. Installed new grinder pump 

and electrical cord on 9/27.  
 

The September 2021 collection system data report is provided for the Board’s 

information. There were no Category 1, no Category 2’s, and no Category 3 SSO’s 

during the month of September 2021.                   
 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends that the Board receive the Manager’s Report for September 2021. 

 

Supporting Documents 

Attachment A: Monthly Flow Report September 2021 

Attachment B: Monthly NPDES Report September 2021 

Attachment C: Collection System Data September 2021 

Attachment D: Contract Collection Service Report September 2021 

102



MGD %

The City of Half Moon Bay 0.715 61.7%

Granada Community Services District 0.232 20.1%

Montara Water and Sanitary District 0.212 18.3%

Total 1.159 100.0%

Attachment A

Flow Distribution Report Summary for September 2021

The summary of the ADF information is as follows:

The daily flow report figures for the month of September 2021
have been converted to an Average

Daily Flow (ADF) for each Member Agency.
The results are attached for your review.

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

3.50

0.000

0.200

0.400

0.600

0.800

1.000

1.200

1.400

9
/1
/2
0
2
1

9
/2
/2
0
2
1

9
/3
/2
0
2
1

9
/4
/2
0
2
1

9
/5
/2
0
2
1

9
/6
/2
0
2
1

9
/7
/2
0
2
1

9
/8
/2
0
2
1

9
/9
/2
0
2
1

9
/1
0
/2
0
2
1

9
/1
1
/2
0
2
1

9
/1
2
/2
0
2
1

9
/1
3
/2
0
2
1

9
/1
4
/2
0
2
1

9
/1
5
/2
0
2
1

9
/1
6
/2
0
2
1

9
/1
7
/2
0
2
1

9
/1
8
/2
0
2
1

9
/1
9
/2
0
2
1

9
/2
0
/2
0
2
1

9
/2
1
/2
0
2
1

9
/2
2
/2
0
2
1

9
/2
3
/2
0
2
1

9
/2
4
/2
0
2
1

9
/2
5
/2
0
2
1

9
/2
6
/2
0
2
1

9
/2
7
/2
0
2
1

9
/2
8
/2
0
2
1

9
/2
9
/2
0
2
1

9
/3
0
/2
0
2
1

R
ai
n
, I
n
ch
es

M
G
D

Sewer Authority Mid‐Coastside
Monthly Flow Distribution Report, September 2021

HMB GCSD MWSD Plant Rain, inches103



Rain Rain Rain
Date HMB GCSD MWSD Plant Plant Portola Montara

9/1/2021 0.710 0.222 0.211 1.143 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/2/2021 0.690 0.213 0.212 1.115 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/3/2021 0.686 0.234 0.213 1.133 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/4/2021 0.767 0.257 0.224 1.248 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/5/2021 0.743 0.267 0.224 1.234 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/6/2021 0.762 0.264 0.238 1.264 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/7/2021 0.695 0.223 0.209 1.127 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/8/2021 0.678 0.222 0.209 1.109 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/9/2021 0.685 0.223 0.201 1.109 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/10/2021 0.684 0.227 0.200 1.111 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/11/2021 0.743 0.253 0.218 1.214 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/12/2021 0.753 0.261 0.228 1.242 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/13/2021 0.716 0.222 0.209 1.147 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/14/2021 0.704 0.223 0.204 1.131 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/15/2021 0.681 0.220 0.203 1.104 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/16/2021 0.709 0.221 0.203 1.133 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/17/2021 0.718 0.229 0.199 1.146 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/18/2021 0.747 0.245 0.216 1.208 0.06 0.02 0.01
9/19/2021 0.800 0.262 0.234 1.296 0.06 0.07 0.13
9/20/2021 0.700 0.219 0.210 1.129 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/21/2021 0.686 0.225 0.204 1.115 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/22/2021 0.674 0.214 0.207 1.095 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/23/2021 0.695 0.224 0.200 1.119 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/24/2021 0.677 0.226 0.196 1.099 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/25/2021 0.755 0.248 0.218 1.221 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/26/2021 0.761 0.257 0.230 1.248 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/27/2021 0.714 0.220 0.209 1.143 0.05 0.05 0.12
9/28/2021 0.730 0.222 0.207 1.159 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/29/2021 0.691 0.213 0.211 1.115 0.00 0.00 0.00
9/30/2021 0.700 0.220 0.207 1.127 0.00 0.00 0.00

Totals 21.455 6.975 6.354 34.784 0.17 0.14 0.26

Summary

HMB GCSD MWSD Plant

Minimum 0.674 0.213 0.196 1.095

Average 0.715 0.232 0.212 1.159

Maximum 0.800 0.267 0.238 1.296

Distribution 61.68% 20.05% 18.27% 100.0%

Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside

Monthly Flow Distribution Report for September 2021

104



0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

3.50

0.000

0.200

0.400

0.600

0.800

1.000

1.200

1.400

R
ai
n
, I
n
ch
es

M
G
D

Sewer Authority Mid‐Coastside
Monthly Flow Distribution Report, September 2021

HMB GCSD MWSD Plant Rain

105



0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

3.50

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

R
ai
n
, I
n
ch
es

P
er
ce
n
t 
D
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

Percent Distribution
September 2021

HMB GCSD MWSD Plant Rain Linear (HMB) Linear (GCSD) Linear (MWSD)

106



Most recent flow calibration March 2021 PS, March 2021 Plant

0.000

0.200

0.400

0.600

0.800

1.000

1.200

1.400

1.600

1.800

Oct‐20 Nov‐20 Dec‐20 Jan‐21 Feb‐21 Mar‐21 Apr‐21 May‐21 Jun‐21 Jul‐21 Aug‐21 Sep‐21 Oct‐21

One Year Flow Chgart
Oct 2020 ‐ Sept 2021

H.M.B. G.C.S.D. M.W.S.D. Plant

0.000

0.500

1.000

1.500

2.000

2.500

3.000

O
ct
‐1
8

N
o
v‐
1
8

D
ec
‐1
8

Ja
n
‐1
9

Fe
b
‐1
9

M
ar
‐1
9

A
p
r‐
1
9

M
ay
‐1
9

Ju
n
‐1
9

Ju
l‐
1
9

A
u
g‐
1
9

Se
p
‐1
9

O
ct
‐1
9

N
o
v‐
1
9

D
ec
‐1
9

Ja
n
‐2
0

Fe
b
‐2
0

M
ar
‐2
0

A
p
r‐
2
0

M
ay
‐2
0

Ju
n
‐2
0

Ju
l‐
2
0

A
u
g‐
2
0

Se
p
‐2
0

O
ct
‐2
0

N
o
v‐
2
0

D
ec
‐2
0

Ja
n
‐2
1

Fe
b
‐2
1

M
ar
‐2
1

A
p
r‐
2
1

M
ay
‐2
1

Ju
n
‐2
1

Ju
l‐
2
1

A
u
g‐
2
1

Se
p
‐2
1

O
ct
‐2
1

Three Year Flow Chart
Oct 2018 ‐ Sept 2021

H.M.B. G.C.S.D. M.W.S.D. Plant

107



Flow based percent distribution based for past year

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Oct‐20 Nov‐20 Dec‐20 Jan‐21 Feb‐21 Mar‐21 Apr‐21 May‐21 Jun‐21 Jul‐21 Aug‐21 Sep‐21

1 year Distribution by %
Oct 2020 ‐ Sept 2021 

H.M.B. G.C.S.D. M.W.S.D.

108



Date
Inf TSS 

mg/l
Eff TSS 

mg/l

Eff TSS 
Weekly 

Avg

TSS % 
Removal

Inf BOD 
mg/l

I° Eff 
BOD 
mg/l

Eff BOD 
mg/l

Eff BOD 
Weekly 

Avg mg/l

9/1/2021 330 6.10 98.2% 290 220 6.7
9/2/2021 340 6.20 98.2% 270 400 7.6
9/3/2021
9/4/2021 6.15 7.15
9/5/2021
9/6/2021
9/7/2021
9/8/2021 330 5.60 98.3% 440 290 7.3
9/9/2021 280 8.70 96.9% 480 300 18.0

9/10/2021 310 8.50 97.3% 530 320 18.0
9/11/2021 7.60 14.43
9/12/2021 350 9.60 97.3% 310 250 5.3
9/13/2021 360 8.80 97.6% 310 280 6.2
9/14/2021 340 10.00 97.1% 290 230 3.9
9/15/2021
9/16/2021
9/17/2021
9/18/2021 9.47 5.13
9/19/2021
9/20/2021 280 6.70 97.6% 310 270 5.4
9/21/2021 270 8.70 96.8% 240 210 4.8
9/22/2021 330 8.20 97.5% 450 280 6.4
9/23/2021
9/24/2021
9/25/2021 7.87 5.53
9/26/2021
9/27/2021
9/28/2021 360 12.00 96.7% 450 270 8.4
9/29/2021 350 14.00 96.0% 480 260 13.0
9/30/2021 370 12.00 96.8% 500 270 5.0

12.67 8.80

Count 14 14 5 14 14 14 14 5
Minimum 270 5.60 6.15 96.0% 240 210 3.9 5.1
Average 329 8.94 8.75 97.3% 382 275 8.3 8.2

Maximum 370 14.00 12.67 98.3% 530 400 18.0 14.4

Percent Removal 85
5 Sample Median

High
Low

Daily Max
Weekly Max 45 45

Monthly Average 30 30

SAM          E-001          September 2021

109



Date
BOD % 

Removal

Eff 
Turbidity 

NTU

Eff Turbidity 
Weekly Avg 

NTU

Chlorine 
Residual  
Day Max

9/1/2021 97.7% ND 2.70 0.00
9/2/2021 97.2% 0.00
9/3/2021 0.00
9/4/2021 ND 2.70 0.00
9/5/2021 0.00
9/6/2021 0.00
9/7/2021 0.00
9/8/2021 98.3% ND 1.7 0.00
9/9/2021 96.3% ND 4.4 0.00
9/10/2021 96.6% 0.00
9/11/2021 ND 3.05 0.00
9/12/2021 98.3% ND 3.9 0.00
9/13/2021 98.0% ND 3.30 0.00
9/14/2021 98.7% 0.00
9/15/2021 0.00
9/16/2021 0.00
9/17/2021 0.00
9/18/2021 ND 3.60 0.00
9/19/2021 0.00
9/20/2021 98.3% ND 3.40 0.00
9/21/2021 98.0% ND 2.20 0.00
9/22/2021 98.6% 0.00
9/23/2021 0.00
9/24/2021 0.00
9/25/2021 ND 2.80 0.00
9/26/2021 0.00
9/27/2021 0.00
9/28/2021 98.1% ND 6.30 0.00
9/29/2021 97.3% ND 4.80 0.00
9/30/2021 99.0% 0.00

ND 5.55

Count 14 0 0 9 5 30
Minimum 96.3% 0.0 < 0.00 1.70 2.70 0.0
Average 97.9% ND ND 3.63 3.54 0.0

Maximum 99.0% 0.0 0.0 6.30 5.55 0.0

Percent Removal 85
5 Sample Median

High
Low

Daily Max 225 4.8
Weekly Max 100

Monthly Average 75

SAM          E-001          September 2021

Eff Settleable 
Matter Weekly 

Avg mg/l

Eff Settleable 
Matter mg/l

110



Date
Chlorine 

time 
Minutes

Ammonia 
Nitrogen 
Distilled 

mg/l

Eff pH
Eff 

Temp
Eff DO 
mg/l

Eff DO % 
Saturation

9/1/2021 0.00 41.0 7.06 21.3 ND 7.13 80.5
9/2/2021 0.00 6.99 21.4 7.16 80.8
9/3/2021 0.00 7.02 21.4 6.03 68.2
9/4/2021 0.00 7.01 20.8 ND 7.06 79.1
9/5/2021 0.00 6.89 21.7 6.02 68.1
9/6/2021 0.00 6.71 21.0 6.68 74.8
9/7/2021 0.00 6.78 21.6 6.46 73.1
9/8/2021 0.00 7.00 22.1 6.65 76.2
9/9/2021 0.00 27.0 6.75 21.8 ND 6.51 73.9
9/10/2021 0.00 6.98 21.8 6.07 68.2
9/11/2021 0.00 6.91 22.2 ND 6.06 69.4
9/12/2021 0.00 6.86 21.9 6.13 69.8
9/13/2021 0.00 20.0 6.95 21.5 ND 6.18 69.9
9/14/2021 0.00 6.97 21.3 6.50 73.1
9/15/2021 0.00 6.97 21.0 7.04 78.9
9/16/2021 0.00 7.04 21.2 7.30 82.3
9/17/2021 0.00 7.02 20.7 7.22 80.6
9/18/2021 0.00 6.99 21.0 ND 6.98 78.3
9/19/2021 0.00 6.99 22.0 6.19 70.3
9/20/2021 0.00 7.05 21.6 6.36 72.1
9/21/2021 0.00 32.0 7.05 21.6 ND 6.48 73.5
9/22/2021 0.00 7.04 21.4 7.22 81.9
9/23/2021 0.00 7.05 21.1 6.36 71.3
9/24/2021 0.00 7.12 21.3 7.48 84.4
9/25/2021 0.00 7.02 21.1 ND 6.83 76.7
9/26/2021 0.00 6.99 21.5 6.39 71.9
9/27/2021 0.00 7.00 21.4 6.79 76.7
9/28/2021 0.00 7.08 21.2 6.75 76.0
9/29/2021 0.00 39.0 7.09 20.6 ND 6.45 71.7
9/30/2021 0.00 7.17 20.6 6.92 77.0

ND

Count 30 5 30 30 0 0 30 30
Minimum 0.00 20.0 6.71 20.6 < 0 < ND 6.02 68.1
Average 0.0 31.8 6.99 21.4 < ND < ND 6.65 75.0

Maximum 0.00 41.0 7.17 22.2 0 < 0.0 7.48 84.4

Percent Removal
5 Sample Median

High 9
Low 6

Daily Max
Weekly Max

Monthly Average

8,300      

2,800       

SAM          E-001          September 2021

30 day 
geo mean

Entero-
cocci 
MPN

111



September 2021

Total HMB GCSD MWSD SAM 
Roots 0 0 0 0 0

Grease 0 0 0 0 0
Mechanical 0 0 0 0 0 Oct - 20 11,459 14,887 8,999 35,345    6.7

Wet Weather 0 0 0 0 0 Nov - 20 11,229 23,059 9,482 43,770    8.3
Other 0 0 0 0 0 Dec - 20 17,235 16,367 4,540 38,142    7.2
Total 0 0 0 0 0 Jan - 21 9,147 11,987 2,909 24,043    4.6

Feb - 21 8,887 7,652 5,483 22,022    4.2
Mar - 21 12,401 11,943 4,691 29,035    5.5

12 Month Moving Total April - 21 10,839 2,172 6,565 19,576    3.7
May - 21 12,472 986 6,281 19,739    3.7

Total HMB GCSD MWSD SAM June - 21 10,450 3,278 4,743 18,471    3.5
Roots 2 1 0 1 0 July - 21 13,852 9,054 3,571 26,477    5.0

Grease 0 0 0 0 0 Aug - 21 9,803 7,616 8,952 26,371    5.0
Mechanical 0 0 0 0 0 Sep - 21 10,059 8,794 8,659 27,512    5.2

Wet Weather 0 0 0 0 0
Other 1 0 0 1 0 Annual ft 137,833 117,795 74,875 330,503
Total 3 1 0 2 0

33% 0% 67% 0% Annual Mi. 26.1 22.3 14.2 62.6

Reportable SSOs

Total HMB GCSD MWSD SAM 
September 2021 0 0 0 0 0

12 Month Moving Total 3 1 0 2 0

SSOs / Year / 100 Miles

Total HMB GCSD MWSD SAM 
September 2021 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

12 Month Moving Total 2.9 2.7 0.0 7.4 0.0
Category 1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Category 2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Category 3 2.9 2.7 0.0 7.4 0.0

Miles of Sewers 104.5 37.0 33.2 27.0 7.3
35.4% 31.8% 25.8% 7.0%

Number of S.S.O.'s /Year/100 Miles

Reportable Number of S.S.O.'s

12 month rolling Number

Number of S.S.O's

A
ttach

m
en

t  C
Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside

Monthly Collection System Activity/SSO Distribution Report, September 2021

12 Month Rolling Total Sewer Cleaning Summary

Month HMB GCSD MWSD
Total  
Feet

Total 
Miles

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Moving 12 Month SSO Totals Through February
2008

Moving 12 Month Totals

```

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

12 Month Moving SSO Totals Through September 
2021

All S.S.O.'s

Cat 1

Cat 2

Cat 3

112



TASK SUMMARY- GCSD 2021-2022

Task
Target 
Total Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June

Total to 
Date

% 
Complete

Sewer Line Cleaning 87,000     7,608       5,724       4,139       17,471     20%

Hot Spot Cleaning 5,400       1,587       1,762       3,052       6,401       119%

Lift Station Inspection - Daily 52            4              4              5              13            0%

Lift Station Inspection - Annually 3              -           -           -           -           0%

Maint. Work Orders - Completed -           4              4              5              13            -

Maint. Work Orders - Incomplete -           -           -           -           -

Manhole Inspection 879          44            41            37            122          14%

USA Markings 372          74            74            46            194          52%

F.O.G. Inspections Completed 10            -           -           -           -           0%

F.O.G. Inspections Passed 10            -           -           -           -           0%

F.O.G. Inspection Failed - -           -           -           -           -

Lateral Inspections - -           -           2              2              -

Customer Service Call - Reg - 2              -           2              4              -

Customer Service Call - OT - -           1              1              2              -

SSO Response - Category 1 - -           -           -           -           -

SSO Response - Category 2 - -           -           -           -           -

SSO Response - Category 3 - -           -           -           -           -

Insurance Claims Filed - 0 0 0 -           -

113



TASK SUMMARY-HMB 2021-22

Task
Target 
Total July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June

Total to 
Date

% 
Complete

Sewer Line Cleaning 81,457     9,827       8,229       9,882       27,938     34%

Hot Spot Cleaning 25,184     4,369       2,246       839          7,454       30%

Lift Station Inspection - Weekly 43            4              4              5              13            30%

Lift Station Inspection - Quarterly 4              -           -           -           -           0%

Lift Station Inspection - Annually 1              -           -           -           -           0%

Maint. Work Orders - Completed -           4              4              5              13            

Maint. Work Orders - Incomplete -           -           -           -           -           

Manhole Inspection 722          57            45            39            141          20%

USA Markings 703          46            51            56            153          22%

Customer Service Call - Reg - -           2              3              5              

Customer Service Call - OT - 1              3              5              9              

SSO Response - Category 1 - -           -           -           -           

SSO Response - Category 2 - -           -           -           -           

SSO Response - Category 3 - -           1              -           1              

114



  
SEWER AUTHORITY MID-COASTSIDE 

Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 
Regular Board Meeting 7:00 PM, Monday, November 8, 2021 

SAM Administration Building, 1000 N. Cabrillo Highway, Half Moon Bay, CA 94019 

 

Computer Audio: Please click the link below to join the Zoom webinar: 
Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87824890227?pwd=ZWZZSE92YWlUTHhkRS8yeUhMTmxQUT09 

Dial by your location 

        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 

Meeting ID: 878 2489 0227 

Passcode: 904493 

 

If you have a disability and require special assistance related to participating in this 

teleconference meeting, please contact the Authority at least two working days in advance of 

the meeting at (650) 726-0124 or via email at kishen@samcleanswater.org. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 

      A. Roll Call: Chair: Barbara Dye (GCSD)  

Vice-Chair: Deborah Ruddock (HMB) 

Secretary/Treasurer: Kathryn Slater-Carter (MWSD) 

Director: Dr. Deborah Penrose (HMB)  

Director: Ric Lohman (MWSD)  

                                           Director:                        Matthew Clark (GCSD) 

             

2.   PUBLIC COMMENT / ORAL COMMUNICATION 

Members of the public are welcome to submit comments via e-mail by sending them to 
kishen@samcleanswater.org.  All comments so submitted prior to 7 pm on November 8, 2021 

will be, at the request of the commenter, read out loud during the discussion of the respective 

item(s) identified in the  e-mail; comments without such identification shall be read during this 

Due to the continuing state of emergency declared by the Governor related to preventing the 
spread of COVID-19, and pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e), Sewer Authority Mid-
Coastside (SAM) will be holding this Board meeting by Zoom Webinar; access to this meeting 
will be available to the Board and the public by either computer web-link or telephone audio as 
noted above. 

1



Item at the request of the commenter. Members of the public may also directly provide 

comments telephonically or electronically via weblink during this comment period or during 

discussion of the individually listed items on the agenda following recognition by the Board 

Chair presiding over the meeting.   

 

3.   CONSENT AGENDA (Consent items are considered routine and will be approved/  

      adopted by a single motion and vote unless a request for removal for discussion or  
      explanation is received from the public or Board.) 
 

      A. Approve Minutes of October 25, 2021 Regular Board Meeting (Attachment) 
      B. Approve Disbursements for November 8, 2021 (Attachment) 
       
4.   REGULAR BUSINESS (The Board will discuss, seek public input, and possibly take 
      action on the following items) 

A. Authorize General Manager to Execute a Contract with EOA Inc. to Perform National 

Pollution Discharge Elimination System Permit Resissuance Assistance in an amount  

not to exceed $44,150 (Attachment) 

B. Authorize General Manager to Issue a Purchase Order to Vapex Environmental Inc. for 

supply of Odor Control Unit for Pump stations.  (Attachment) 

C. Report on Plant Upset Issues.(Attachment) 

D. Implementation Options for SAM Existing Non-Domestic Waste Source Control 

Program. (Attachment) 

 
5.   GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
                                                        

6.   ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
                         

7.   DIRECTORS’ REPORT  
 

8.   TOPICS FOR FUTURE BOARD CONSIDERATION (Attachment) 
 

9.   CONVENE IN CLOSED SESSION (Items discussed in Closed Session comply with the  
      Ralph M. Brown Act.) 

       
      A.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL- EXISTING LITIGATION 

 Pursuant to Government Code Paragraph (2) of Subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 
 (FEHA Claim 202008-10882405 filed by Beverli Marshall)   

      B.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
            Pursuant to Government Code Paragraph (1) of Subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9: 
            (Half Moon Bay v. Granada CSD, Montara WSD & Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside) 
      C.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL –SIGNIFICANT RISK OF LITIGATION (1 
            CASE) Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (2)  
      D.  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (§ 54957) Title: General 
            Manager       

2



10.   CONVENE IN OPEN SESSION (Report Out on Closed Session Items) 

11. ADJOURNMENT 

 Upcoming Regular Board Meetings: November 22, 2021 and December 13, 2021 
 

The meeting will end by 9:00 p.m. unless extended by Board vote. 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC 
 

This agenda contains a brief description of each item to be considered. Those wishing to 

address the Board on any matter not listed on the Agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the 

Board, may do so during the Public Comment section of the Agenda and will have a maximum 

of three minutes to discuss their item. The Board Chair will call forward those wishing to speak 

on a matter listed on the Agenda at the appropriate time. 
 

Any writing that is a public record and relates to an agenda item for an open session of a 

regular meeting that is distributed to the Board less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, is 

available for public inspection, during normal business hours, at the Authority’s office. 
 

Board meetings are accessible to people with disabilities. Upon request, the Authority will 

make this agenda available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability. In 

compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Authority will provide special 

assistance for participation in this meeting. Please submit requests for a disability-related 

modification or an accommodation in order to participate in the public meeting at least two 

working days in advance of the meeting by contacting the Authority at (650) 726-0124. 

3



- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM #11 



 

 

 

 

 



GCSD Special and Regular Board of Directors Meetings 
October 21, 2021 

GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

SPECIAL AND REGULAR MEETINGS 
October 21, 2021 

 

THIS MEETING WAS HELD VIA TELE-CONFERENCE AS 
PERMITTED BY STATE EXECUTIVE ORDER N-08-21. 

 
CALL SPECIAL MEETING TO ORDER 
The Special Meeting was called to order at 6:33 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL 
President Matthew Clark, Vice President Eric Suchomel, Director Barbara Dye, 
Director Nancy Marsh, and Director David Seaton. 
 
Staff: General Manager Chuck Duffy, District Counsel Bill Parkin, and Assistant General 
Manager Delia Comito. 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Public members may comment on matters under the jurisdiction of the District that are 
not on the agenda. Comments are limited to 3 minutes. 
 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
1. Approve a Resolution Proclaiming a Local Emergency Persists, Ratifying the 

Proclamation of a State of Emergency Issued on March 4, 2020, and Authorizing 
Remote Teleconference Meetings of the Legislative Bodies of the   Granada 
Community Services District for a Period of 30 Days Pursuant to the Brown Act. 

ACTION: Director Dye moved to approve the Resolution as presented.  
(Dye/Suchomel).  Approved 5-0. 

 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
2. Conference with Real Property Negotiator (Government Code Section 

54956.8). Property: Avenue Alhambra (no street address), El Granada, California, 
APN 047-251-070. 
District’s Negotiator: Chuck Duffy 
Negotiating parties: Laura Silvestri Trust and Granada Community Services District Under 
negotiation: Instruction to negotiator will concern price and terms of payment. 

 
3. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation (Government Code 

Section §54956.9(d)(1)). 
City of Half Moon Bay v. Granada Community Services District and Montara Water 
and Sanitary District (RPI, Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside) – Santa Clara County 
Superior Court Case No. 17CV316927. 



GCSD Special and Regular Board of Directors Meetings 
October 21, 2021 

 
4. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 
§54956.9(d)(2) (One Case) 
 

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
There was no reportable action taken in Closed Session. 
 
ADJOURN SPECIAL MEETING 
 
CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
The regular meeting was called to order at 7:34 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
1. Report on Parks and Recreation Activities.  

Director Dye reported on the Jr. Land Stewardship program funded by the District, and 
showed pictures of the children during their activities.  The program has been well 
received.  Director Marsh reported that the PAC applicant interviews were being 
conducted, and that improvements had been made to the District parks webpage. 
PAC Chair Tierney reported on the success of the most recent movie night, and he 
reviewed the draft PAC task list for 2022. 

 
2. Consideration of Civil Engineering Contract with BKF Engineers for Burnham Park.  

The board discussed the  
ACTION: Director Dye moved to approve the contract with BKF Engineers.  
(Dye/Marsh).  Approved 5-0. 

 
3. Discussion of SAM Treatment Plant Process Issues and Non-Domestic Source 

Control Program. 
The General Manager provided a review of the issues at the SAM treatment plant which 
have occurred over the past year, as well as a spreadsheet listing the pant’s influent and 
effluent BOD (biochemical oxygen demand) data for the past year. The data showed that 
the BOD levels coming into the plant were elevated for a period of two weeks in late 
October and early November 2020, and the plant could not process the increased BOD 
which led to exceedances of its permitted effluent BOD limits. The plant generally ran well 
for the next six months until the newly retrofitted aeration basin #3 was put online in June, 
after which the plant experienced exceedances in TSS (total suspended solids) and BOD 
due to the growth of filamentous bugs in the basin. The staff report stated, and the board 
concurred, that instituting a Non-Domestic Source Control Program is a prudent best 
practices measure for a sewer treatment and collections system. 
 
 
 
 
 



GCSD Special and Regular Board of Directors Meetings 
October 21, 2021 

4. Report on Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside Meetings.  
Directors Dye and Clark reported that the SAM AR Aging Report problem that erroneously 
listed GCSD owing $27,994 to SAM has finally been corrected.  The board thanked Delia 
for her hard work in resolving the issue, and for the cooperation by the SAM financial staff. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
5. September 16, 2021 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes. 
6. October 2021 Warrants. 
7. August 2021 Financial Statements. 
8. Quarterly LAIF Investment Report 
9. Assessment District Distribution #3-21/22. 

ACTION: Director Dye moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  (Dye/Suchomel).  
Approved 5-0. 

 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
10. Report on seminars, conferences, or committee meetings. 

 
INFORMATION CALENDAR 
11. Attorney’s Report. (Parkin) 
12. General Manager’s Report. (Duffy) 
13. Administrative Staff Report. (Comito) 
14. Engineer’s Report. (Kennedy Jenks) 
15. Future Agenda Items. 

 
ADJOURN REGULAR MEETING 
The Regular Meeting was adjourned at 9:10 p.m. 
 
ATTEST: SUBMITTED BY: 
 
 
__________________________  __________________________ 
Delia Comito, Board Secretary Chuck Duffy, General Manager 
 
Date Approved by Board: November 18, 2021 





- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM #12 



 

 

 

 

 



 Granada Community Services District
November 2021 Warrants 

For the November 18, 2021 Board of Director's Meeting

Date Num Name Memo Account Amount
10/22/21 9019 AT&T Oct Svcs 6170 · Utilities 74.69            
10/22/21 9020 Edgewood Partners Add'l Liab for Picasso Preschool 6080 · Insurance 1,553.00       
10/22/21 9021 Golden Bay Construction Naples Beach Sewer Project-2 1617-1 · Medio Creek/Mirada Sewer 49,063.70     
10/22/21 9022 Kennedy Jenks Sum #172 Oct 2021 6070 · Engineering Services 6,760.44       
10/22/21 9023 Sandie Arnott-SMX Tac Collector APN 047-081-350 6220 · Office Supplies 9.34              
11/18/21 9024 Alhambra & Sierra Springs Invoice dtd 10/28/21 6140 · Office Supplies 18.44            
11/18/21 9025 Adreini Brothers Invoice dtd 10/21/21 7005 · Manhole Raising 3,827.81       
11/18/21 9026 AT&T Oct 2021 Pump Stn Alarm Svc 6170 · Utilities 98.31            
11/18/21 9027 Barbara Dye 10/21/21 GCSD, 10/25/21 & 11/08/21 SAM6040 · Directors' Compensation 235.00          
11/18/21 9028 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP Oct 2021 6152 · Accounting 2,500.00       
11/18/21 9029 Comcast 11/13/21-12/12/21 Svcs 6170 · Utilities 199.97          
11/18/21 9030 CSDA 2022 Membership Renewal 6100 · Memberships 6,662.00       
11/18/21 9031 David Seaton 10/21/21 GCSD 6040 · Directors' Compensation 145.00          
11/18/21 9032 Dudek 09/25/21-10/29/21 Prof. Svcs 6151 · General Manager 9,600.00       
11/18/21 9033 EDD Claim Liab Ltr dtd 11/01/21 6063 · Employer Payroll Taxes 406.23          
11/18/21 9034 Eric Suchomel 10/21/21 GCSD 6040 · Directors' Compensation 145.00          
11/18/21 9035 Gaetani Real Estate Office Lease-Dec 2021 6120 · Office Lease 4,550.00       
11/18/21 9036 Hue & Cry, Inc Nov 2021 Pump Stn Alarm 6170 · Utilities 32.65            
11/18/21 9037 Kikuchi & Kankel Design Group Prof Svs through 10/31/2021 5130 · Parks & Rec Professional Svcs 1,628.75       
11/18/21 9038 Matthew Clark 10/21/21 GCSD, 10/25/21 & 11/08/21 SAM6040 · Directors' Compensation 235.00          
11/18/21 9039 Nancy Marsh 10/21/21 GCSD 6040 · Directors' Compensation 145.00          
11/18/21 9040 Pacifica Community TV 09/16/21 GCSD 6180 · Video Taping 300.00          
11/18/21 9041 PG&E Pump Stn Inv dtd 10/18/21 6170 · Utilities 227.52          
11/18/21 9042 PGE Office Inv dtd 10/26/21 6170 · Utilities 39.34            
11/18/21 9043 Pitney Bowes Invoice dtd 10/27/21 6140 · Office Supplies 54.43            
11/18/21 9044 Rodolfo Romero 11/10/21 & 11/18/21 Ofc Cleaning 6130 · Office Maintenance & Repairs 140.00          
11/18/21 9045 San Mateo County Hazardous Waste Permit-Naples Bch PS 6220 · Miscellaneous 318.00          
11/18/21 9046 Sandie Arnott-SMX Tac Collector APN 048-046-120 6220 · Miscellaneous 9.34              
11/18/21 9047 Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside Nov 2021 Asmts 5020 · SAM-Admin/Treat/Env/Inf/Coll 144,469.88   
11/18/21 9048 Tri Counties Bank Oct 2021 Card Charges 6140 · Office Supplies 381.27          
11/18/21 9049 US Bank Nov 2021 Svcs 6020 · Copier Lease 357.78          
11/18/21 9050 Verizon Wireless Sep & Oct 2021 6170 · Utilities 285.67          
11/18/21 9051 Wittwer & Parkin Oct 2021 Svcs 6090 · Legal Services 11,286.95     

TOTAL 245,760.51   





- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM #13 



 

 

 

 

 



Project: Sewer Replacement Project

Owner: Granada Community Services District Devaney Engineering, Inc. Date: November 8, 2021

Period: Aug - Nov 2021 1641 Lombard st

Purchase Order:  San Francisco, Ca 94123 140 - PP3

DEI Job No.:  140

BID % % QUANTITY QUANTITY COST COST 
ITEM UNITS QTY UNIT CONTRACT THIS TO THIS TO THIS TO
NO. DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PERIOD DATE PERIOD DATE PERIOD DATE

General Mobilization

1. Mobilization/Demobilization LS 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 33% 100% 0.33 1.00 $4,950.00 $14,950.00

2. Traffic Control LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 0% 100% 0.00 1.00 $0.00 $10,000.00

3. All Sheeting, Shoring and Bracing LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 0% 100% 0.00 1.00 $0.00 $10,000.00

4. Sheet C-01 -    8" SS In Street LF 444 $145.00 $64,380.00 0% 100% 0.00 444.00 $0.00 $64,380.00

5. Sheet C-02 -    8" SS In Street LF 442 $145.00 $64,090.00 0% 100% 0.00 442.00 $0.00 $64,090.00

6. Sheet C-03 -    8" SS in Street LF 59 $145.00 $8,555.00 0% 100% 0.00 59.00 $0.00 $8,555.00

7. Sheet C-03 -   6" SS In Street , Spot Repair LS 1 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 0% 100% 0.00 1.00 $0.00 $7,000.00

8. Sheet C-04 -   8" SS In Street LF 390 $145.00 $56,550.00 0% 100% 0.00 390.00 $0.00 $56,550.00

9. Sheet C-06 -   8" SS In Street - PB(3) LF 150 $145.00 $21,750.00 0% 100% 0.00 150.00 $0.00 $21,750.00

10. Alternative to Bid Item 9 Sheet C-06 8" SS In Street - OC LF 150 $30.00 $4,500.00 0% 100% 0.00 150.00 $0.00 $4,500.00

11. Sheet C-06 6" SS In Street – OC, Spot Repair LS 1 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 0% 100% 0.00 1.00 $0.00 $7,000.00

12. Dewatering LS 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0% 100% 0.00 1.00 $0.00 $1,000.00

13. Sheets C-01, 02, 03, & 06 Lateral Replacement and Reconnection EA 14 $3,500.00 $49,000.00 0% 100% 0.00 14.00 $0.00 $49,000.00

14.  Sheet C-06 A.  Manhole G5-34 Replacement LS 1 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 0% 100% 0.00 1.00 $0.00 $7,500.00

 Sheet C-06 B.  Manhole G5-33 Repair LS 1 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 0% 100% 0.00 1.00 $0.00 $3,000.00

15. Allowance Item, Sheet C-05  6" SS In Street LF 184 $145.00 $26,680.00 0% 100% 0.00 184.00 $0.00 $26,680.00

16. Allowance Item, Sheet C-05  OC6" SS In Street LF 203 $150.00 $30,450.00 0% 100% 0.00 203.00 $0.00 $30,450.00

17. Allowance Item, Sheet C-05  manhole Replacement LS 1 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 0% 100% 0.00 1.00 $0.00 $7,500.00

18. Allowance Item, Sheet C-05 Lateral Replacement and Reconnection EA 15 $3,500.00 $52,500.00 0% 60% 0.00 9.00 $0.00 $31,500.00

19. San Mateo County permit LS 1 $3,182.00 0% 100% 0.00 1.00 $0.00 $3,182.00

20. PCO #1 - RFI #1 - Mounment reference relocation LS 1 $5,000.00 100% 100% 1.00 1.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

21. PCO #2 - RFI #5 - Point repair extention / material variation/ encasement LS 1 $4,433.00 100% 100% 1.00 1.00 $4,433.00 $4,433.00

22. PCO #3 - RFI #3 - Palma st changes   - deepen sewer LS 1 $6,756.00 100% 100% 1.00 1.00 $6,756.00 $6,756.00

23. PCO #4 - RFI #4 - Palma st changes  add - C900 pipe & CDF LS 1 $10,000.00 100% 100% 1.00 1.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

24. PCO #5 - 6" Lateral on Alhambra LS 1 $4,000.00 100% 100% 1.00 1.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00

25. PCO #6 - ACP pipe removal on Palma LS 1 $20,000.00 100% 100% 1.00 1.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00

26. PCO #7 -  Unknown waterline on Alhambra LS 1 $10,000.00 100% 100% 1.00 1.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

$446,455.00

$65,139 $488,776

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 65,139.00$         488,776.00$             
LESS 5% RETENTION 3,256.95$           24,438.80$               
SUBTOTAL 61,882.05$         464,337.20$             
LESS PREV PAYMENTS 402,455.15$             
BALANCE DUE 61,882.05$         61,882.05$               

Page 1





- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM #14 



 

 

 

 

 



 Granada Community Services District
 Statement of Net Position (Unaudited)

 As of September 30, 2021

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings

1020 · Petty Cash 43                             
1030 · Cash - LAIF 1,841,425                 
1040 · Tri Counties Bank - Gen Op 377,709                    
1050 · Tri Counties Bank - Deposit 47,597                      
1500 · Due from AD 230,080                    
1550 · Prepaid Expenses 4,500                        

Total Current Assets 2,501,354                 
Fixed Assets

1600 · Land 2,808,979                 
1610 · Construction in Progress 969                           
1615 · Equipment 22,153                      
1620 · Collections System 11,227,956               
1630 · Accumulated Depreciation (7,008,196)

Total Fixed Assets 7,051,861                 
Other Assets

1700 · Advance to MWSD 1,085,094                 
1710 · Allowance - for Advance to MWSD (1,085,094)
1720 · Advance to AD- Bond Reserve 364,890                    
1730 · Advance to AD- NCA Fund 166,477                    
1735 · Advance to AD- Assesmnt Revenue 84,834                      
1750 · Investment in SAM 4,709,323                 
1760 · Deferred Outflows of Resources 102,010                    

Total Other Assets 5,427,534                 
Total Assets 14,980,748               

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

2000 · Accounts Payable 37,624                      
2001 · Accrued Vacation 6,248                        
2020 · Class 3 Deposits 19,055                      
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 3,871                        
2225 · Recology-Del Garbage 40,313                      
2300 · Due to AD 6,789                        
2310 · Relief Refund Advance 350                           

Total Current Liabilities 114,250                    
Long Term Liabilities

2401 · Net Pension Liability 177,495                    
2402 · Deferred Inflows of Resources 21,144                      

Total Long Term Liabilities 198,639                    
Total Liabilities 312,889                    

NET POSITION
3000 · Net Assets 5,826,879                 
3005 · Contributed Capital 9,595,349                 
Net Income (754,369)

Total Net Position 14,667,859$             

No assurance is provided on these financial statements.



 Granada Community Services District
 Revenue & Expenses (Unaudited)

 July 1, 2021 through September 30, 2021

 Jul 1, 2021 - 
September 
30, 2021 

 Expected To 
Date 

Variance              
Favorable/ 

(Unfavorable)

 FY 
2021/2022 

Budget 
Revenues

Operating Revenue
4010 · Property Tax Allocation -$             -$             -$               -$             
4015 · Park Tax Allocation 330              212,499       (212,169) 850,000       
4020 · Sewer Service Charges-SMC -               452,499       (452,499) 1,810,000    
4021 · Sewer Svc Charges Pro-rated 1,149           -               1,149             -               
4030 · AD OH Reimbursement -               8,000           (8,000)            32,000         
4040 · Recology Franchise Fee 9,441           8,250           1,191             33,000         

Total Operating Revenue 10,920 681,248       (670,328)        2,725,000    

Non Operating Revenue
4120 · Interest on Reserves -               4,500           (4,500)            18,000         
4130 · Connection Fees 7,378           7,000           378 28,000         
4150 · Repayment of Adv to AD-NCA -               48,825         (48,825)          195,300       
4155 · Repayment of Adv to AD-ARF -               28,675         (28,675)          114,700       
4160 · SAM Refund from Prior Yr -               250              (250)               1,000           
4170 · ERAF Refund 265,134       62,500         202,634         250,000       
4180 · Misc Income 217,905       1,250           216,655         5,000           

Total Non Operating Revenue 490,417       153,000       337,417         612,000       
Total Revenues 501,337       834,248       (332,911)        3,337,000    

Expenses
Operations
5010 · SAM - General 245,243       245,243       -                 980,971       
5020 · SAM - Collections 61,153         61,153         -                 244,612       
5021 · Lift Station Maint. 804              -               (804)               -               
5050 · Mainline System Repairs -               2,500           2,500 10,000         
5060 · Lateral Repairs -               6,250           6,250             25,000         
5065 · CCTV -               3,750           3,750             15,000         
5070 · Pet Waste Station -               300              300                1,200           
5110 · RCD - Parks -               7,500           7,500             30,000         
5120 · Half Moon Bay Reimb - Parks -               97,250         97,250           389,000       
5130 · Parks & Rec Professional Services 25,557         75,000         49,443           300,000       

Total Operations 332,757       498,946       166,189         1,995,783    

No assurance is provided on these financial statements.



 Granada Community Services District
 Revenue & Expenses (Unaudited)

 July 1, 2021 through September 30, 2021

 Jul 1, 2021 - 
September 
30, 2021 

 Expected To 
Date 

Variance              
Favorable/ 

(Unfavorable)

 FY 
2021/2022 

Budget 
Expenses (Continued)

Administration
6010 · Auditing 1,325$         4,000$         2,675$           16,000$       
6020 · Copier lease 1,072           1,500           428                6,000           
6040 · Directors' Compensation 3,530           2,750           (780)               11,000         
6050 · Education & Travel Reimb -               500              500                2,000           
6060 · Employee Compensation
6061 · Employee Salaries 54,820         55,000         180                220,000       
6062 · Medical Ins. 11,001         10,842         (159)               43,370         
6063 · Employer Payroll Taxes 4,455           12,908         8,453             51,630         
6064 · CALPERS Contribution 15,565         -               (15,565)          -               
6060 · Employee Compensation - Other 310              -               (310)               -               

6070 · Engineering Services 19,755         5,000           (14,755)          20,000         
6080 · Insurance 106              8,750           8,644             35,000         
6090 · Legal Services 12,102         10,000         (2,102)            40,000         
6095 · Legal Services for Case Related Legal 26,330         22,500         (3,830)            90,000         
6100 · Memberships -               2,250           2,250             9,000           
6110 · Newsletter -               1,750           1,750             7,000           
6120 · Office Lease 13,500         15,000         1,500             60,000         
6130 · Office Maintenance & Repairs 420              750              330                3,000           
6140 · Office Supplies 1,649           750              (899)               3,000           
6150 · Professional Services
6151 · General Manager 31,238         21,250         (9,988)            85,000         
6152 · Accounting 5,000           8,000           3,000             32,000         
6150 · Professional Services - Other 2,960           -               (2,960)            -               

6150 · Professional Services 39,198         29,250         (9,948)            117,000       
6160 · Publications & Notices 390              500              110                2,000           
6170 · Utilities 2,400           3,000           600                12,000         
6180 · Video Taping 900              1,000           100                4,000           
6190 · Computers 2,407           625              (1,782)            2,500           
6220 · Miscellaneous 62                3,751           3,689             15,000         
6230 · Bank Service Charges 190              -               (190)               -               
6310 · Park Related Misc Expenses 10,338         -               (10,338)          -               

Total Administration 221,825       192,376       (29,449)          769,500       

Capital Projects
1213-1 · Naples Bch PS & FM Real. 783              -               -                 -               
1617-1 · Medio Creek Xing Crossing 339,380       100,000       (239,380)        400,000       
7010 · Sewer Main Replacement (CIP) 233,947       72,500         (161,447)        290,000       
7100 · SAM - Infrastructure 127,014       127,014       -                 508,056       
7500 · Projects - Parks -               32,500         32,500           130,000       

Total Capital Projects 701,124       332,014       (369,110)        1,328,056    
Total Expenses 1,255,706    1,023,336    (232,370)        4,093,339    

Net Income/(Loss) (754,369)$    (189,088)$    (565,281)$      (756,339)$    

No assurance is provided on these financial statements.





- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM #15 



 

 

 

 

 



#4-21/22

$2,167.00

Dated:
November 18, 2021

GRANADA SANITARY DISTRICT                 

DISTRIBUTION REQUEST NO.: 
 BOND ADMINISTRATION FUND

 (Account Number: 94673305)

DISTRIBUTION TOTAL:

$6,100,000.00 

LIMITED OBLIGATION REFUNDING IMPROVEMENT BONDS 2003
Reassessment & Refunding Project

DISTRIBUTION  REQUEST
For Payment of Bond Administration Costs

The undersigned Treasurer of the Granada Sanitary District (the “District”) hereby requests of the Fiscal 
Agent for the District the payment of Bond Administration Costs for the items and in the manner and 
amount stated in the attached Schedule A, and in connection herewith hereby certifies that the payment 
requested is for the Administrative Costs, and that funds are available in the Bond Administration Fund 
(Account #94673305) to make such payment, and further states that all requirements for the payment of 
the amount to be disbursed pursuant hereto have been met. 

Chuck Duffy, Finance Officer/Treasurer



DISTRIBUTION REQUEST NO.: #4-21/22

DATE: November 18, 2021
DISTRIBUTE FROM ACCOUNT #: 94673305

ACCOUNT NAME: Bond Administration Fund
DISTRIBUTION AMOUNT: 2,167.00$           

PAYMENT INSTRUCTIONS: Issue checks and mail as listed below.

Payee Mailing Address Services Provided  Amount 
GCSD OH Reim-Nov 2021 2,167.00$    

TOTAL: 2,167.00$    

SCHEDULE "A"

GCSD P.O. Box 335, El Granada, CA 94018



- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM #16 



 

 

 

 

 



REQUESTED BY 
 
Granada Sanitary District 
 
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 
  
Granada Community Services District 
P.O. Box 335 
El Granada, CA 94018     For Recorder’s Use 
 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
(Public Work of Improvement) 

 
Notice is hereby given that: 
 
1.  The undersigned is owner of the interest or estate stated below in the property hereinafter described. 
2. The full name of the undersigned is Granada Community Services District 
3.  The full address of the undersigned is: 504 Avenue Alhambra, 3rd floor, El Granada, CA 94018.        
4.  The nature of the title of the undersigned is:  District Engineer 
5.  A work of improvement on the property hereinafter described was completed on ____________________ 
6. The name of the contractor, if any, for such work of improvement was: Golden Bay Construction 
  
7.  The property on which said work of improvement was completed in the City of Half Moon Bay and the 

unincorporated area of El Granada in the 
 County of San Mateo, State of California, and is described as follows:   
  
 Project Name:  Medio Creek Bridge Crossing Sewer Relocation Project, Phase 2 
  
 Work Done:  Replacing sanitary sewer line, manholes and related facilities, and repairs to existing manholes 

within the area of Half Moon Bay and El Granada in San Mateo County, CA. 
   
8.  The street address of said property is:     None_____________________________________________________ 
            (If no street address has been officially assigned, insert “none”) 
 
Dated: November 18, 2021            GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 
     By:_____________________________________ 
                                                                               Matthew Clark, Board President 
 
 
State of California            ) 

 
Verification 

                                        )    ss 
County of San Mateo       ) 
 
The undersigned being duly sworn, says: On this 
____day 
 
of_____________,20____before me, personally 
appeared  
 
_____________________________,  personally known 
to me (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
evidence) to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are 
subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the 
same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and 
that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument 
the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the 
person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 
 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me 
 
 
Signature_____________________________________ 
                 Notary Public in and for said State 
 
 
Commission No._______________________________ 
 

 
I am the Board President of the Granada Sanitary 
District, owner of the public work above described, 
and am authorized to make this verification on its 
behalf. The statements in the foregoing document 
are true of my own knowledge, except as to those 
matters which are stated therein on information and 
belief, and as to those matters I believe them to be 
true.  
 
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing 
is true and correct. 
 
 
Executed on ___________________20____at 
 
 
_______________________, California. 
 
 

 
 

Board President 
Granada Community Services District 

 
 



 



- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM #17 



 

 

 

 

 



REQUESTED BY 
 
Granada Sanitary District 
 
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 
  
Granada Community Services District 
P.O. Box 335 
El Granada, CA 94018     For Recorder’s Use 
 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
(Public Work of Improvement) 

 
Notice is hereby given that: 
 
1.  The undersigned is owner of the interest or estate stated below in the property hereinafter described. 
2. The full name of the undersigned is Granada Community Services District 
3.  The full address of the undersigned is: 504 Avenue Alhambra, 3rd floor, El Granada, CA 94018.        
4.  The nature of the title of the undersigned is:  District Engineer 
5.  A work of improvement on the property hereinafter described was completed on ____________________ 
6. The name of the contractor, if any, for such work of improvement was: Devaney Construction 
  
7.  The property on which said work of improvement was completed in the City of Half Moon Bay and the 

unincorporated area of El Granada in the 
 County of San Mateo, State of California, and is described as follows:   
  
 Project Name:  2020 Sewer Replacement Project 
  
 Work Done:  Replacing sanitary sewer line, manholes and related facilities, and repairs to existing manholes 

within the area of Half Moon Bay and El Granada in San Mateo County, CA. 
   
8.  The street address of said property is:     None_____________________________________________________ 
            (If no street address has been officially assigned, insert “none”) 
 
Dated:_November 18, 2021                 GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 
     By:_____________________________________ 
                                                                              Matthew Clark, Board President 
 
 
State of California            ) 

 
Verification 

                                        )    ss 
County of San Mateo       ) 
 
The undersigned being duly sworn, says: On this 
____day 
 
of_____________,20____before me, personally 
appeared  
 
_____________________________,  personally known 
to me (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
evidence) to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are 
subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the 
same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and 
that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument 
the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the 
person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 
 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me 
 
 
Signature_____________________________________ 
                 Notary Public in and for said State 
 
 
Commission No._______________________________ 
 

 
I am the Board President of the Granada Sanitary 
District, owner of the public work above described, 
and am authorized to make this verification on its 
behalf. The statements in the foregoing document 
are true of my own knowledge, except as to those 
matters which are stated therein on information and 
belief, and as to those matters I believe them to be 
true.  
 
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing 
is true and correct. 
 
 
Executed on ___________________20____at 
 
 
_______________________, California. 
 
 

 
 

Board President 
Granada Community Services District 

 
 



 



- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM #18 



 

 

 

 

 



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

AAGGEENNDDAA  NNOOTTIICCEE  
 
 
 

 
 
 

There are no documents for this Agenda Item. 
 
 
 

 
 





- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM #19 



 

 

 

 

 



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

AAGGEENNDDAA  NNOOTTIICCEE  
 
 
 

 
 
 

There are no documents for this Agenda Item. 
 
 
 

 
 





- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM #20 



 
 
 
 
 



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

AAGGEENNDDAA  NNOOTTIICCEE  
 
 
 

 
 
 

There are no documents for this Agenda Item. 
 
 
 

 
 





- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM #21 



 
 
 
 
 



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

Administrative Staff Report 

 
Period:     October 16, 2021 to November 12, 2021  
  
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Delia Comito, Assistant General Manager 
                                
Date:        November 18, 2021 
 

 

 
REQUEST FOR PUBLIC RECORDS – There were no requests this period. 
 
APPLICATIONS RECEIVED – There were three applications received this period: 
 

Date Class Owner or Agent APN Address Sq. Ft. Zone 

07/02/21 2D SMC Harbor Dist. 047-263-010 RV Park, Cabrillo Hwy 180,524 - 
07/06/21 ADU Semprevivo 048-033-290 245 Medio Ave, EG 10,000 R-1/B-1 
07/26/21 1A Silva 047-173-150 San Pedro Ave, EG 9,545 R-1/S-17 
08/09/21 1A Perrone 047-094-160 324/326 Sonora Ave, EG 5,500 R-1/S-17 
08/30/21 1A 515 Hermosa LLC 048-063-420 515 Hermosa Way, Miramar 9,600 R-1/S-94 
09/02/21 1A Moules 047-208-100 Ave Portola, EG 3,056 R-3/S-3 
09/20/21 ADU Freestone 047-056-290 936 San Carlos, EG 6,101 R-1/S-17 
09/27/21 ADU Loubal 037-333-140 105 Harbour, EG 4,212 R-1/S-17 
10/21/21 2M Clonea LLC 047-204-020 516 Ave Alhambra, EG 7,824 C-1/S-3/DR 

 10/25/21 2D Point Pillar Prop. 047-081-430 100 Capistrano Road, EG 41,350 CCR/DR 
11/12/21 ADU Burington 047-131-090 430 Vallejo St, EG 6,875 R-1/S17 

Note: Shaded information was previously reported. 

 
PERMITS ISSUED – There were no sewer permits issued this period. 
 

Permit 
# Class Date Owner or Agent APN Address Sq. Ft. Zone 

3216 ADU 07/09/21 Semprevivo 048-033-290 245 Medio Ave, HMB 10,000 R-1/B-1 
3217 1A 07/13/21 Zheng 047-151-120 639 El Granada Blvd, EG 5,230 R-1/S-17 
3218 1A 07/16/21 Sanchez-Contreras 047-244-240 519 Isabella Ave, EG 5,000 R-1/S-17 
3219 1A 08/02/21 O'Connor 047-103-010 538 Valencia Ave, EG 6,250 R-1/S-17 
3220 1A 10/08/21 Perrone 047-094-160 324/326 Sonora Ave, EG 5,500 R-1/S-17 

Note: Shaded information was previously reported. 

 
 
 
 
 



Administrative Staff Report  
November 18, 2021 
Page Two 
 
 
 
SEWER HOOK-UPS - There were no sewer hook-ups this period. 

 

Date Class Permit # Issued Owner APN Address 
07/02/21 1A 3201 03/10/20 Kroll 047-092-260 100 Vallejo St, EG 
07/07/21 1A 3202 06/12/20 Randle 047-153-240 600 El Granada Blvd, EG 
08/17/21 1A 3210 01/27/21 Steadman* 047-212-150 463 The Alameda, EG 
08/23/21 1A 3209 01/21/21 Steadman* 047-282-160 900 The Alameda, EG 
09/20/21 ADU Attached N/A Freestone 047-056-290 936 San Carlos, EG 
09/21/21 1A 3180 09/14/18 Reavill 047-055-120 438 Sevilla Ave, EG 
10/05/21 1A 3217 07/14/21 Zheng 047-151-120 639 El Granada Blvd, EG 
10/14/21 1A 3211 01/27/21 Steadman* 047-282-150 226 Ave Cabrillo, EG 

*Change in ownership to 375 La Prenda, LLC. 
Note: Shaded information was previously reported. 

 
REPAIRS - There were no lateral repairs this period. 



- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM #22 



 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

November 12, 2021 

Memorandum 

To: Granada Community Services District  

From: John H. Rayner, District Engineer 

Subject: Engineer’s Report for November 2021 
                   
  

6-Year CIP, Project 1 
 
The project has been completed and a Notice of Completion will be filed following the Board 
meeting. Providing there have been no mechanic’s liens filed within 30 days of filing the Notice 
of Completion, the retainage can then be paid to the Contractor. The Contractor’s invoice 
includes the request for payment of seven construction change orders which we recently 
negotiated with the Contractor and are described in the enclosed copy on my 11/9/21 email to 
Chuck Duffy. We recommend that Devaney Engineering’s 11/8/21 invoice be approved for 
payment. 
 
Naples Beach Project - Phase 2 
 
As mentioned in my October report, the Naples Beach Phase 2 Sewer project is complete, and 
sewage no longer flows over Medio Creek. 
 
Replacement of Mirada Road Sewer North of Medio Creek and Raising MH Cover 
 
Golden Bay Construction was authorized for this work by 2 change orders issued under the 
above Naples Beach Phase 2 Sewer contract.  
As mentioned in my October report, Change Order no.5 was issue to replace the badly 
deteriorated sewer on Mirada Road, north of Medio Creek and the work was completed in 
September.  
Change Order no.6 was issued to raise the buried manhole cover on MHG8-05, on Avenue 
Cabrillo near the intersection with The Alameda. This work was recently completed and is 
included on Golden Bay’s 10/18/21 invoice which we recommend be approved for payment. 
This completes all work included in Golden Bay’s contract and a Notice of Completion will be 
filed following the Board meeting. Providing there have been no mechanic’s liens filed within 30 
days of filing the Notice of Completion, the retainage can then be paid to the Contractor 
 
Status of Medio Creek Bridge Project 
 
Completion of Golden Bay’s project clears the way for the County to construct its pedestrian 
bridge replacement project without interfering with any of GCSD’s active sewers. The bridge 
project will remove GCSD’s now abandoned 10” sewer when it demolishes the old bridge. 
Construction on the new bridge was delayed because of requirements included in its approved 



 Kennedy/Jenks  

Memorandum 
Granada Community Services District  
November 12, 2021 
Page 2 

CDP. When I last checked, the County was hoping to be able to begin construction next 
summer.  
 
 
Big Wave (Class 3 Permit) 
 
Construction of the mainline extension sewer along Airport Street has been delayed after initially 
constructing the sewer north about 650’ from the intersection of Airport Street and Stanford 
Avenue just before reaching two large culverts that cross the road. A 14” steel casing will be 
jack and bored under twin 48” culverts to accommodate inserting the 8” sewer pipe. This work is 
not expected to be performed for at least another month. After the casing is installed, sewer 
construction will resume along Airport Street to the Big Wave site. We expect to have an 
updated schedule from the contractor for the December Board meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Encl : JHR 11/9/21 email to Chuck Duffy re CIP Project 1 Change Orders  
 
 



Chuck, 
Before submitting my Engineer’s Report later this week for next week’s Board meeting, I 
wanted to let you know that yesterday we negotiated costs for all 7 construction change 
orders. 
About 2/3 of change order costs were for the replacement of the sewer on Palma Street (COs # 
3, 4 & 6). During construction it was discovered that the sewer had a deep sag (possibly 
installed that way because a house lateral was too low to drain to the main if the main had 
been installed on grade). According to Tony Young of SAM, the main has experienced multiple 
backups. So rather than pipe bursting, the new sewer had to be regraded and installed by open 
cut. The sewer material was not clay as shown but asbestos cement which required the workers 
to be trained to be able to remove and disposed of the pipe properly. Utility interferences at 
the corner of Palma and Isabella required the sewer to installed quite shallow using heavier 
weight pipe (C900 PVC) and CDF (low strength concrete) backfill.  
CO #1 was additional survey to locate County monuments in the street,  not shown on the 
drawings, which might conflict and need to be removed for sewer construction and be reset 
afterwards. Just one of the monuments had to be removed and reset. 
CO #2 was for the extra cost of a point repair which turned out to be for an 8” sewer, not a 6”as 
shown and it was concrete encased which added to the difficulty of the repair.  
CO #5 was for the extra cost of providing a 6” lateral instead of a 4”.  
CO #7 was for the extra cost of providing a longer and deeper pipe bursting pit in loose soil 
because of a utility interference. 
In total the 7 change orders total $60,189. The individual change order amounts are shown on 
the attached 11/8/21 final progress pay invoice from Devaney Engineering. As shown the final 
project cost is $488,776. For reference, change orders are 9.5% of the initial award which is still 
about $20k below the #2 bidder. 
The only work remaining is installing a short section of striping or Bott’s dots in one of the 
streets as directed by the County. The 5% retainage of $24k is more than enough to cover that 
work so we’re recommending a payment of $61,882.05 and still holding on to the 5% retainage 
until at least the December Board meeting. 
Let me know whether or not you think it would be helpful to put these change orders in a table 
with short descriptions/cost for each in my Board report. Also please let me know if you have 
any comments. Thanks. 
                      John 
 





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM #23 



 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

11/18/21 
Granada Community Services District 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

# Agenda Item By Est. Date Notes 
1 Adopt Admin Policy for PRA’s Staff per GJ Unknown TBD 
2 Adopt Financial Reserves Policy Staff per GJ Unknown TBD 

3 Adopt Policy for Brown Act Compliance Staff per GJ Unknown TBD 

4 Amend Fee Resolution Staff Nov 2021 Updated 

5 Review of Lateral Policy Board Unknown TBD 

6 Ord Code Revision Staff Unknown In progress 

7 Discuss Composting Requirement Board Nov 2021 
 

  

Updated 

8 Financing for Parks Board Unknown Requested by Dir. Marsh 

9 PAC Member Appointment Staff Jan 2022 Required on even #’d yrs. 
 10 Update Records Retention Policy Staff Feb 2022 Needs revisions 

11 Update Conflict of Interest Code Staff Aug 2022 Updated-Req on even #’d yrs. 
      

     

     
 COMPLETED ITEMS    
 SSC/Connection Fee Study Staff Mar 2021 In progress 
 Adopt Policy for Board Member Ethics Staff per GJ Unknown TBD 
 Adopt PSM Amendments Staff Apr/May 

 
 

  

In progress 
     

     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

 


	1 - 2021-11-18 DRAFT Mtg Agenda-6-cd-FIXED
	ROLL CALL
	GENERAL PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
	ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION
	RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION
	ADJOURN SPECIAL MEETING
	ROLL CALL
	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
	CONSENT AGENDA
	COMMITTEE REPORTS
	INFORMATION CALENDAR
	ADJOURN REGULAR MEETING

	1 -CLOSED SESSION NO DOCS
	AGENDA NOTICE

	1- TAB
	1-pump trk Agenda MEMO-dc
	2- TAB
	2A-Agenda MEMO-Carey-DRAFT
	2B-REVISED-Carey Variance Findings (AR BP3)
	2-Carey Variance Docs
	3- TAB
	3a-516 Ave Alhambra Agenda MEMO-dc
	3b-516 Ave Alhambra App & Docs
	3c-516 Ave Alhambra Plans
	3d-Power Sanitary Sewer Plan C-4
	3e-516 Ave Alhambra Map
	4- TAB
	4-Agenda MEMO-dc
	4-DRAFT Ord-Organic Waste Ordinance (AR BP)-dc
	5- TAB
	5-Agenda MEMO-dc
	5-Composting MOU with San Mateo County-DRAFT
	WHEREAS, the County’s Board of Supervisors has enacted a Mandatory Organic Waste Disposal Reduction Ordinance as required by the California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Division 7, Chapter 12 Short-Lived Climate Pollutants; and
	WHEREAS, to promote consistency within jurisdictions throughout San Mateo County and leverage economies of scale, the County has offered to lead the creation of a County-wide Edible Food Recovery Program on behalf of the unincorporated areas of the co...
	WHEREAS, the [jurisdiction’s  xx Council] adopted this Memorandum of Understanding on [date ] and authorizes the County to operate an Edible Food Recovery Program on behalf of and within the Jurisdiction.
	By:____________________________  By:____________________________


	6- TAB
	6a-P&R-Agenda MEMO-dc
	6b-Agenda Memo PAC Nominations
	7- TAB
	7a-Agenda MEMO-dc
	7b-2008-003 Fee Reso APRVD as Amended 4-24-08
	Leonard Woren, President
	Ric Lohman, Secretary

	7-NEW Fee Res-DRAFT
	8- TAB
	8-Agenda MEMO-dc
	9- TAB
	10- TAB
	10-SAM Rpt
	5-Monthly Manager’s Report – September 2021

	11- TAB
	11-DRAFT Oct Minutes-cd
	THIS MEETING WAS HELD VIA TELE-CONFERENCE AS PERMITTED BY STATE EXECUTIVE ORDER N-08-21.
	ROLL CALL
	GENERAL PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
	SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA
	ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION
	RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION
	ADJOURN SPECIAL MEETING
	ROLL CALL
	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
	CONSENT AGENDA
	COMMITTEE REPORTS
	INFORMATION CALENDAR

	12- TAB
	12-November  2021 Warrants
	November 2021 Warrants 

	13- TAB
	13-Progress payment 3
	14- TAB
	14-Copy of September 2021 Financials
	Balance Sheet - September
	Profit & Loss - September

	15 - TAB
	15-Dist Req
	#4-Nov 2021

	16- TAB
	16-Notice of Completion
	Granada Sanitary District
	Verification

	17- TAB
	17-Notice of Completion
	Granada Sanitary District
	Verification

	18- TAB
	18-NO DOCS - Copy (3)
	19- TAB
	19-NO DOCS - Copy (4)
	20 - TAB
	20-NO DOCS
	21- TAB
	21-2021-11 Admin Rpt
	22- TAB
	22a-Nov 2021 Engineer's Report
	Memorandum
	From: John H. Rayner, District Engineer
	The project has been completed and a Notice of Completion will be filed following the Board meeting. Providing there have been no mechanic’s liens filed within 30 days of filing the Notice of Completion, the retainage can then be paid to the Contracto...
	As mentioned in my October report, the Naples Beach Phase 2 Sewer project is complete, and sewage no longer flows over Medio Creek.
	Replacement of Mirada Road Sewer North of Medio Creek and Raising MH Cover
	Golden Bay Construction was authorized for this work by 2 change orders issued under the above Naples Beach Phase 2 Sewer contract.
	As mentioned in my October report, Change Order no.5 was issue to replace the badly deteriorated sewer on Mirada Road, north of Medio Creek and the work was completed in September.
	Change Order no.6 was issued to raise the buried manhole cover on MHG8-05, on Avenue Cabrillo near the intersection with The Alameda. This work was recently completed and is included on Golden Bay’s 10/18/21 invoice which we recommend be approved for ...
	This completes all work included in Golden Bay’s contract and a Notice of Completion will be filed following the Board meeting. Providing there have been no mechanic’s liens filed within 30 days of filing the Notice of Completion, the retainage can th...
	Status of Medio Creek Bridge Project

	23- TAB
	23-Future Agenda Item List-Nov
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



